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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel). .. Good evening, ladies and gentlemen,
people of the Up country area, Pukalani, Paia, and wherever you came
from, probably from Central Maui, too. So, welcome to the Budget and
Finance Committee meeting this evening. You know, we've had three
community meetings so far. And each time the crowd gets bigger and
bigger. So, I don't know if you guys wanted to see us really, really
desperately, or it's because of the new Administration.
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But anyway, at this time, I'd like to introduce Gladys Baisa, who is the
Up country Council Member, to introduce the rest of the Members here
this evening. Gladys .... (applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Chair Pontanilla. You know I have a
compulsion to straighten things and that's what happened. Thank you,
Tony.
MR. FISHER: Don't touch it.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I'd like to welcome all of you tonight and thank
you for coming. This is my hometown. I've been born and raised a third
generation Up country person. And you make me proud tonight because so
many of you have come out to welcome the Council Members here
tonight. So, thank you very much.
I'd like to introduce you to the Council Members. First of all, you need to
meet our Budget and Finance Chair, Joe Pontanilla. He's with the Kahului
seat. And seated next to him is our Council Chair Riki Hokama who's
from Lanai. And I'll just keep going down the row. Our next Council
Member is Danny Mateo. He's from Molokai. And next to him is
Michelle Anderson from South Maui, Kihei, and all of those towns over
there that we up here look down on.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: ... (laughter) . . . You give us a beautiful view to
look at. We love looking down there. And then, but you know, we still
want that view open, Michelle. Okay. Our next Council Member is
Mr. Mike Victorino and he has Wailuku, Waihee, and a whole bunch of
other places down there. It's a long list so I'm saving time. And the last
person of course on this side is Jo Anne Johnson. She's our West Maui
lady from Lahaina. And then right next to me is Bill Kauakea Medeiros
from the Hana, East Maui seat.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And next to him is a man that's no stranger to any
of you because he lives Up country also - Mike Molina. And with us
tonight are our loyal staff who we work to death: Kim Willenbrink, our
Legislative Analyst, and Clarita Balala, our Committee Secretary. Thank
you very much.
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ITEM NO. 1:

PROPOSED BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2008 FOR
THE COUNTY OF MAUl (C.C. 07-29)

CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Gladys. Tonight it is your opportunity to
present your comments on the Mayor's Fiscal Year 2008 Proposed
Budget. For the, just a few ground rules before we start. If you could turn
off your pagers, cell phone to the off position or the silent mode. As you
come up and testify, if you could provide us your name and the
organization that you represent before testifying. You'll have three
minutes to testify. And after three minutes if you can conclude your
statement, we'd appreciate it.
So, let's get the ball rolling. The first person to testify this evening is John
Arisumi followed by Debbi Amaral. John .

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY. ..
MR. ARISUMI: Good evening. Unfortunately, I don't know all these guys so
it's easier for me to testify today. I'm here this evening to testify on
behalf ofMEO.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Let's get close, Johnny. We cannot hear.
MR. ARISUMI: I'm here tonight to testify on behalf ofMEO. First of all, I want
to thank all the past and present Council Members including the new
Council Members to be here this evening to come and listen to people like
myself. And of course I got a big gang - MEO.
I would like to stress more on MEO budget on transportation. I think if,
without the MEO transportation service that we have now, I don't know
what the senior citizens will do including myself. Very shortly I think
they're going to take my license away and I got to be prepared.
But anyway, you know, the transportation service is really something that
I never realized until I retired and joined the P&CC, Planning and Council
Committee, right? And I realized all the work the MEO, MEO does.
They do a whole lot of things. It's listed and I'm sure you folks received
our budget. And to make a long story short, you know, sooner or later,
you know, our budget may be looking pretty big but sooner or later our
new barn has to be built too. You got to look forward towards that.
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And if we can get that barn done like in about two or three years, I think
MEO will be sitting pretty. I also want to thank the MEO employees
because they're so nice to the senior citizens. And they do anything to, to
try and satisfy the Council Members. They, I know they not, they not
working with the best wages but I guess in that business they rather, you
know, do it and sacrifice and be happy. And thanks, thank you to all the
MEO people for doing that for us. Thank you very much .... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you.
followed by Jordan Nye.

Members, any question for the
Next testifier is Debbi Amaral

MS. AMARAL: Good early evening, Council Members. And thank you for the
opportunity to offer the community the chance to come before you and
speak. My name is Debbi Amaral and I'm the Director of Early
Childhood Services for MEO, which is inclusive of our Head Start
Program.
Right now, with the DOE schedule that has happened with the year-round
schedule, we have intercessions that happen along with the summer
session that happens. And the County has been very, very supportive to
the Head Start Program by providing afternoon, extended-day funds as
well as for summer funds. And the summer program offers care for the
children at five locations, four on Maui, one on Molokai, and it's a
full-day program.
What is happening is with the different year-round schedule there's a gap
of services and in our 2008 budget request we have requested an
additional two weeks of funding for the summer program. And what that
will do is it will close the gap for especially working families that need the
care for their children during that time period when school starts again for
the new school year.
So, the document that I had passed to you is our 2008 request for the two
additional weeks of service to make a total of eight weeks for our summer
program to operate. Thereby offering the families the opportunity to work
or go to school and have the care knowing that their children are being
well cared for while they're attending at work and sustaining their
financial stability. And at this point, I'd welcome any questions.
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CHAlR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Debbi.
testifier? Member Baisa.

Members, any question for the

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Debbi.
MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: We have your budget before us and I'm looking at
the numbers.
MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Is this for the full program or is this for that, you
know, that two weeks that we were trying to figure out how much that's
going to cost us?
MS. AMARAL: This would be for the full program for the eight weeks.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: I see.
MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: So, we can figure out the difference between what
we gave before and what you need now. And that. ..
MS. AMARAL: It's 33,000.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: It's 33,000 more for those additional two weeks?
MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: That was the number we were kind of looking for.
MS. AMARAL: Sure. You're very welcome.
CHAlR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Chair. Debbi.
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MS. AMARAL: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Where are the four centers?
MS. AMARAL: It's, when we do the assessment of the program, it, it happens to
be in Kahului, Wailuku, Makawao, Kihei, and Molokai. And we do an
assessment with the families to see where the need is because between, out
of all the centers either Lahaina or Kihei ends up being the ones. But right
now, we have two centers that fulfilled Kihei's needs and one in Lahaina.
So, technically it ends up being Kihei.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, yeah. We, we heard this same need
on Molokai last night.
MS. AMARAL: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, thank you for testifying.
MS. AMARAL: You're very welcome.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Debbi. Members, any more questions for
the testifier? If not, thank you again.
MS. AMARAL: Thank you, too .... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Jordan Nye, followed by Richelle Lu.
MR. NYE: Hi. My name is Jordan Nye. I'm a parent of Shyla, who goes to
Makawao "B" Head Start. And ...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Just tilt it up.
MR. NYE: A little bit up. Okay. Okay. I had the pleasure of being the Class
President this year. I got some letters here from some of the other parents
and we just wanted you guys to know that this program is, is big for the
community. It was big in our lives. One, one of the parents, real fast,
was, is a single mom that got to go back to school. You know, just having
the opportunity to, you know, have her child go someplace where they're
going to be watched and, and kept, and you know, taught something
everyday.
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And it's a big, I mean this program can't stop obviously. But there's a few
other parents here. And I know everybody that I've talked to in the
classes, they, there's just all good things to say about, you know, every
class not just the Makawao "B". So, I just wanted to let you guys know
and keep going, keep supporting it and thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Jordan.
MR. NYE: Do you want to say something? Can she say something?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, if you can state your name.
MS. ABARCA: Hello, my name is Felicitas Abarca. I am from Peru. And thank
you very much for hearing us. I don't speak too much English. But I
write some letter for you guys. I, I found out MEO help translate my, my
letters. But I am happy for you guys support. Head Start Program
education is good for the kids. I was teaching in my, in my country. I
know how important education for all children.
In home, the little children don't watch TV. It's not, do nothing for
getting more smart, but they in school learning to be friends, make many
friends, learning a lot of things. It's good. I have three years, three years
already in Head Start Program with my two daughters. My one daughter
and my son. He's happy and my daughter is in kindergarten and she's the
smart one. She's, I am proud about that. Thank you very much. And I
hope that you guys still help. All we need is for the school. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you .... (applause) . .. Are you going to testify?
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: No. These are the letters that they're speaking of.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Give it to the Secretary. Thank you very
much. Next testifier is Richelle Lu, followed by Tori Lu.
MS. R. LU: Aloha, Members. Thank you for this opportunity to testify. My
name is Richelle Lu and I'm here to testify in support of a line item in the
Mayor's proposed budget for the Kansha Preschool. And Kansha
Preschool is located at the Nisei Veterans Center. And it's a very unique
program. It's an intergenerational preschool program that combines the
seniors and the children. They get to interact on a regular basis. It's a
very small program and so we're asking that the Council please support
funding for this program.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Richelle.
MS. T. LU: Hello, my name is Tori. Please support Kansha Preschool. I love the
grandmas and grandpas and my friends and the teacher. And, and the
veterans and the grandmas and grandpas. Thank you very much. ...
(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Seeing none. Thank you again, Richelle.
MS. R. LU: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait, wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sorry. Richelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Wait, wait, wait.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Richelle.
MS. R. LU: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Is, is the amount that you're asking for
already in the Mayor's budget?
MR. R. LU: Yes. My understanding it appears in Housing and Human Concerns
and it's a line item for $25,000.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. R. LU: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Anderson. Thank you, Richelle.
The next testifier this evening is Charlene Doi, followed by Peter Della
Croce. Charlene, if you can talk directly into the mike.
MS. DOl: Sure.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And talk loud so that the people in the back can hear.
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MS. DOl: Okay. How's that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Very good. Thank you.
MS. DOl: I used to talking loud so. Okay. Thank you so much for this
opportunity to come and speak in front of you tonight. That was what it's
all about. I'm the Director/Teacher of the Kansha Preschool, which is
located in the brand new Nisei Veterans Center. And we provide a very
unique intergenerational program with our partners in the center - the
Maui Adult Day Care Centers. They have high-functioning clients there
and so every day of the week we have interactive activities with the clients
and the children.
And it could be a range of things from arts and crafts to gardening to
outdoor time, reading stories together. And what these activities do is
provide cognitive and motor and social stimulation for the clients as well
as our children. And you know in the few months, we've been open since
August, we've seen tremendous growth in both of the, the clients and the
children. And it's, it's just really gratifying for us.
It's been challenging but also very exciting and we want to be able to
continue that program. Our advantage of being small is also our
disadvantage because our small population doesn't allow us to do the
heavy-duty kind of fundraising that you would normally find in a program.
We don't have physical space to expand. So, we're limited in numbers
and size.
But we have parents who are very committed to the program and their
extended families who are very supportive of us, too. So, our line item
request for $25,000 is for operational costs, but to me having been in this
field for over 30 years that includes having and retaining a staff that is
com ... , comp ... , competent, is committed to what we're doing, and is
really adaptable because that's what we need to be in the kind of program
that we have.
And I truly have two staff people with me right now that I don't want to
lose. So, to me it's, it's a complete package that we're looking for. So, I
really appreciate the opportunity to come before you and hope that you
will consider and approve our request. Thank you so much.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Charlene. Members, any questions for the
testifier?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Charlene.
MS. DOl: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Are you servicing three- and four-year-olds?
MS. DOl: Three- and four-year-olds, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And what's your enrollment right now?
MS. DOl: Our enrollment is, we're licensed for 16, and that really maxes out the,
the space there. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Best wishes with your school.
MS. DOl: Thank you so much. I appreciate it.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Charlene. . .. (applause). .. The next
testifier is Peter Della Croce, followed by Shatay Kauhaahaa.
MR. DELLA CROCE: Good evening. Thank you, Maui Council. My name is
Peter Della Croce. I'm the Unit Director, the new Unit Director for the
Up country Boys and Girls Club. I actually transferred from Jo Anne
Johnson's district in Lahaina up here just a couple months ago.
I'd like to just tell you a little bit about the Boys and Girls Club. We have
394 registered members as of today. We average almost 80 people,
80 kids in our building every single day. And when it goes into the
intercession we don't see as many but last Monday we had 50 kids on a
non-school day. So that's really big for us.
We enjoy all the funding that we get from the Council and the Mayor.
This past week, we've done some outings with our brand-new van that we
were able to acquire. Every second Friday of the month, we are able to
use the Eddie Tam Gym to have a safe alcohol, tobacco, and drug-free
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youth dance that has, averages about 300 kids every month. And it's
going up for the last three months. So we're very excited to have that.
And one of, just like the MEO Head Start people, our, one of our biggest
assets is the staff members that we have that help with all of the kids, the
80 to 100 kids that we see a day. We have dedicated staff members, male,
female, of every race in our building that relate and look just like all the
kids that come in our building. And we're, we're very happy to provide
this service because you know it's so needed for our youth.
I'd like to introduce our group and we'll be short and sweet for you. I'd
like to introduce Shatay.
MS. KAUHAAHAA: Hi. My name is Shatay Kauhaahaa. And I'm a member of
the youth center. I'm 16 years old and I go to King Kekaulike High
School. And some things I do there is today I just started my own dance
class, so like I play music and I teach like the kids to learn new moves and
stuff. So like but it's not like too vulgar. It's like okay for them you
know.
And just last week we went to a trip and we used one of the MEO buses
and there was like, at least like 20 people I think. And like we had a lot of
fun at the beach. We took pictures and like our staff, Jill, hung 'em up
like on a door and like put like little subscriptions [sic] on the bottom.
And I've been a member for eight years. And I've been youth of the
week, youth of the month, and I'm striving to be youth of the year. So,
I'm practicing on that. And I join a lot of clubs like SMART Moves and
Money Matters and doing those clubs. Money Matters they teach us how
to conserve our money and like one time they like gave us like not real
money but fake money and like we went to like maybe like Foodland, and
then they would show us how to conserve the money and just buy what we
need.
And Girls Club, our staff, Jill, she teaches us like a lot stuff for girls like to
be safe and not to like go around and like be like you know like "hoochie
mama" and stuff like that. And she just teach us to be like just good and
stuff like that. And thanks for listening to my speech. And this is Megan.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
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MS. ALEXANDER: Hi. My name is Megan Alexander. I go to Kalama
Intermediate School. I'm in the seventh grade and I'm 13 years old. I've
been going to the Boys and Girls Club for about five years now. Since
then I participated in many activities such as the beach, pool, movies, and
dance class. We also have community service. I go to the Boys and Girls
Club almost every day. I'd just like to say a big mahalo to all our Council.
Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Megan.
MS. ALEXANDER: This is Nicole.
MS. GOMES: Hi. My name is Nicole Gomes and I am 12 years old. I'm in the
seventh grade and I go to Kalama Intermediate School. After school every
day I come to the Boys and Girls Club. I really enjoy going to the club
because it is a place where I can hang out with my friends and feel safe.
Their club is an alcohol, drug, and tobacco-free hangout and a place where
everybody is equal as one big ohana.
We playa lot of outside activities to keep us healthy and going. This club
is here to help kids to prevent and not to start doing drugs. The staff
teaches a little bit of discipline but a lot more of fun. And on last week
Wednesday when, when the club was closed, the staff was willing to give
up their free day to take us to the beach.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Nicole.
MS. GOMES: And this is Aja.
MS. MUROMOTO: Hi. My name is Aja Muromoto. I am 13 years old and I
have been going to the club for five to six years. I attend Kalama
Intermediate School and I'm in the seventh grade. I like the club because
I get to hang out with all my friends and meet new people. Also I like the
outings where we go to the beach, mall, movies, bowling, and other
places.
Every day after school I go to the club to do my homework then, and then
I go hangout with my friends. I've been youth of the week and the, and
month. After the club, me and my brother catch the MEO bus home.
Thank you.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you, Aja.
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MS. MUROMOTO: This is Spencer.
MR. K. GUSHlKEN: Hi. My name is Kapono Gushiken and I go, wait--hi, my
name is Kapono Gushiken and I am nine years old. I go to Pukalani
Elementary School. I, I go to the Boys and Girls Club during intercession
and holidays. If I don't go to the Boys and Girls Club, I stay home by
myself because both of my parents work. And I like going to the club
because I like skating with my, skating and playing with my friends.
Thank you for listening to my speech. And this is Zach.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. STEFANSKI: Hi. My name is Zach Stefanski. I am 13 years old. I go to
Kalama Inter ... , Intermediate School as an eighth-grade student. And I
also go to the Boys and Girls Club as often as I can which is pretty much
every day. Some of my favorite things to do at the Boys and Girls Club
are things like sports such as football, baseball, and a lot of basketball.
We also do community service to help the staff around the club. Thank
you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Zach.
MR. DELLA CROCE: And if we may, we have one parent with us tonight.
MR. S. GUSHlKEN: Hello, Council. My name is Steven Gushiken. I am very
grateful for the support you guys have done for the Boys and Girls Club.
It helps us parents with, when they're on intercession what do we do with
our kids? Where are we going to, babysitters, what we going do? And
they've stepped up and been there for us. So, I appreciate all the help that
they get from you guys.
Also, I'm a volunteer security guard for the dances, and also a volunteer
coach for the Up country Little League. I appreciate everything there.
Thank you guys so much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Gushiken.
MR. HANLON: Hello. My name is Colin Hanlon. I found the club when I was
12 and I never left. Most of you know that I'm the Chief Professional
Officer for the Boys and Girls Clubs of Maui. And I just would like to say
that you are aware that we're on two-year funding for the youth centers so
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we're not here in, in that honor. It's really just an opportunity for us to
thank the past Council and to come and say thank you to this Council as
well.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Colin. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you, Colin. . ... (applause). .. The next
testifier is Tony Fisher, followed by Steve Sutrov.
MR. FISHER: I thought I was much further back on the list. My name is Tony
Fisher and I'm here, as you might notice, to represent MEO. This color, if
you don't know it, is Gladys Baisa pink. She designed this years ago and
but it seemed the appropriate thing to wear. I'm also here in support of
COMET.
When my hair turned gray and I suddenly found a place called MEO P&C,
with all of the things that I've done, I have, I've lived on the mainland for
many years and there's no group in the, that I have ever been associated
with that provides so many things to seniors and obviously the keiki as
well as, as MEO does. So, if, when you come to that section in the budget
that says MEO, just put a check mark. It's a really great thing.
The second thing is that we at COMET are going to reintroduce, in fact,
we have already submitted the first part of that to Councilmember Joe
Pontanilla for COMET for the, an ordinance, again, for property tax
reform. I just very briefly want to go through the elements of that because
I think they're important to reiterate.
Number one, the property per tax proposal in, is in 100 percent designed
to increase revenue. This is not a tax cut thing. Number two, it has a
4 percent cap. We waited until after everybody's assessments went out.
And I've already had people walking up to me and say you should see
what happened to my tax assessment this year because they, a lot of 'em
have really gone up. Thirdly, reassessment only occurs when the property
changes hands. So that when somebody has a $400,000 assessed property
and they sell it for a million, the new buyer pays a million dollars in
property tax assessment. That's how you make this enormous amount of
additional revenue.
The third part of it is fundamentally something, which is designed for
parents and grandparents. When I moved to Hawaii, one of the things that
I found was that people wanted to live in their property forever.
Bill Tavares, who would be here except for the fact that he has really great
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problems driving at night, lives in the property that in three years his
family will have lived on for a hundred years. And so we have a clause in
there that allows people to pass on to their children or the
grandchildren -- not cousin, aunts, uncles, or anybody else -- children or
grandchildren their property and their children then do not have to be
reassessed. They get that.
And the last provision is fundamentally one that says as your hair gets
grayer and that big house becomes a pain in the neck and you would like
to live in a condo or some smaller home, it may be impossible to do so
because you may have lived there for 30, 40, 50 years. And it allows you
to take your old property tax with you. Does that cost the County any
money?
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. FISHER: Absolutely not. Because the new buyer will be assessed on your
old property at whatever it is that they have paid for. It is a, just a
marvelous system that has really worked. . . .(end of tape, start IE) . ..
Oh, yeah, the last thing is that this does apply to all properties. This is not
just homeowners.
I would like to make one comment about the Mayor's proposal for the, the
re ... , changing of the property tax rates and so forth. One of the things
that we are deeply concerned about in COMET are the renters. Renters
are getting killed. There was a letter to the editor this week that said my
taxes went up $3,600 a year on my rental property. I passed that on to my
renter who has to pay $300 more a month. By having the, the ordinance
apply to all properties it means that the person who owns a piece of
property that he rents out will not have that-MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. FISHER: --enormous amount of, of change from year to year. I'll give you
a little more 'cause I'll be in Lahaina tomorrow night and Kihei but I
thank you all for, there's more to tell ... , (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Tony.
MR. FISHER: Anyway, I, I enormously appreciate this Council. You guys have
been very cooperative with us over the years, and but take care of those
guys would you. They're wonderful.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Anderson. Tony.

Members, any questions for the testifier?

Member

MR. FISHER: Yes, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Tony. You said you submitted this
proposal to the Budget Chair. When was that?
MR. FISHER: A week ago? Roughly.
CHAIRPONTANILLA: A week ago.
MR. FISHER: Yes. But tomorrow night I will have copies for everybody. I got
a little around, around the actual today. I didn't have the chance to get the
copies made but I will have copies as testimony for you tomorrow night in
Lahaina.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. FISHER: And by the way, we have, we have modified the ordinance from
four, four pages down to one page. So, it's now on one piece of paper.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tony. Any more questions for the testifier?
If not, we'll see you tomorrow. ... (laughter) . ..
MR. FISHER: Thank you, sir. You bet.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Yeah, I know, and probably the night after that. Okay.
Steve Sutrov, followed by Georgie [sic] Correia.
MR. SUTROV: Aloha, Council. Thank you for coming by tonight and for this
opportunity to testify. My name is Steve Sutrov. I'm testifying for myself
mainly. Tonight, I'm also a Board Member of the Kula Community
Association, and Director of the Kula Tennis Club, and a member of the
Maui District Tennis Association. I'm, I viewed your, your meeting of, of
the 19th of last week on Akaku and I was thoroughly impressed with your
questions on this issue and, you know, the briefing that you got was fairly
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complete on, on, on the additional money that the Mayor has put in her
budget to, for the construction costs of the tennis courts.
The Kula Community Association supports these courts. The Kula
community supports these courts and so does the tennis community
throughout the island. The cost, yes, it's, it was a shock to everybody to
what, what the additional costs, the bids came in at. And the, the
challenges for that site, there are, there are some challenges there that are a
bit different from a flat, level playing field in other parts of the, of the
island. But still I think it was, it was, it was estimated the best it could
have by the Parks at the time.
And I think the problem is I think if with or the challenge there is with
really construction costs escalating in such, in such a short period of time.
And I'd hate to see it, it's no one's fault in Kula or the Maui, the Maui
community for this recreational facility not to go forward because of the
additional funds that are necessary to, to, to put in these two additional
courts.
That park up there has, was master-planned four years ago for a total of
six courts to be built out eventually with restroom facilities, another gate
ball area, and also a passive park area. This is Phase Two - two additional
lit courts, more parking, and realigning a farm road to the property up
above. And Phase Three, I know it's, it's way down the road but I'd like
everyone to realize that we held off with putting two courts seven or eight
years ago up there just so we could master plan it and utilize this park as
Kula has no real park venues for the future.
We can't have a master, you know, a large regional park up there because
of the, the land is so expensive and it's so irregular. We can't do that. So,
we have to have small little satellite parks. And this is one park we
wanted to utilize to the, the best benefit we could and for the community.
With four courts we can start having youth programs, and lessons, and
clinics. Our leagues can start playing up there instead of commuting all
over the island to play. And it's, it's a necessity for recreational
opportunities for the youth and for, I play tennis with some 75-year-old
guys that only like singles. And, you know, there's a lot of people out
there that love this sport. It keeps them alive.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
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MR. SUTROV: And I really ask you for your consideration on the additional
funds necessary to move these courts forward. They can be built this year
with your help. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Steve. Members, any question for the
testifier? Nope. Thanks, again ..... (applause) . .. Georgie [sic] Correia,
followed by Leonard Hasse. I'm sorry. George Correia.
MR. CORREIA: Thank you, Council Members. I appreciate the opportunity to
testify tonight. My name is George Correia. I worked for the County for
24 years. The last twelve, in refuse collection. The last seven, overseeing
all refuse collection operations in the County, except for Molokai, Hana,
and Lanai.
What I'd like to do tonight is maybe give you a brief overview on where
we're at and then I'll get into why I'm here. Currently, we service
9,000 accounts in the Up country area, roughly 2,300 in Lahaina, and
roughly 12,000 accounts in Central and South Maui. Out of that
12,000 accounts, 11,000 is automated. Some of the things that the
automated program has done to help us -- and I think you guys sometimes
get misstatements in Committee meetings -- is we have also an Appliance
Collection Program. In the South, Central, and West Maui areas there is
no overtime being expended for appliance pickup. The extra people that
the automation program has allowed us to have is used for that appliance
program.
We have problems Up country with the appliance pickup because we're
always shorthanded. We hope to correct that hopefully by the end of the
year, because we will be automating roughly 6,500 accounts Upcountry.
We're presently working on the routes now. The equipment is already on
order. It should be here sometime this summer, probably in July or
August. And we also going to automate Lahaina. Roughly, about
1,500 accounts.
The automation program will start Up country. We can't do it all at once
because of the fact that we're doing, also doing the delivery of the carts.
We're doing the education at the curb. In the first two phases of the
automation program in Kihei and in Kahului, we contracted those things
out. It was a total disaster. In phase three of the program we used our
own people on overtime on Saturdays so we could catch people at home,
put them where, tell them where to place the carts, and any other questions
that they had.
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We caught roughly about 75 percent of the people. It cost us $11,000 in
overtime. I asked one of our cart vendors if we were to contract all that
services to them what it would cost us and his answer was $40,000. So,
this group is trying to be efficient and cost-effective and hopefully by the
end of the year we can get the Up country people on the automated system.
Okay. One of the things that the problems up here we have is I got one
supervisor basically taking care from Kailua to Ulupalakua.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. CORREIA: I'll finish up in a minute. Basically, taking from Kailua to
Ulupalakua. Seventy percent of the time he's out on the road dealing with
complaints, with set-out problems, and various other things. When the
people call to get information or maybe their trash wasn't picked up,
there's nobody manning the phones. We don't have anybody. One of my
requests to the Division in October was to ask for a position, an SR-10, a
Clerk Typist, for the Up country area. That position was taken out at the
Division Level. It wasn't even sent up to Public Works, the, the Public
Works Department.
I know the Division Chief has the right to do that. In this case, I believe
he's wrong, because I think when the Mayor talks about core services
what is more a core service than refuse collection? And I think the people
deserve to have somebody answering the phones. So, I'll be happy to
answer any questions that you have.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, George. You know I understand where
you're coming from and I, I wish I was back with the Public Works
Committee as a chairman. I, I know you've done quite a bit in regards to
the refuse pickups for all of the areas that you mentioned. And, and yeah,
truly, you know, part of our goal is to automate total Maui County. So,
thank you very much for doing a good job. You can convey that
information from me to the rest of your crew.
MR. CORREIA: I will. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Member Molina.

At this time, I, you do have some questions from
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, George. First of all, thank you
very much for being here. And, you know, you've been in the Department
for almost a quarter of a century, and you, like all of us here, have seen
how Up country has grown, especially those of us born and raised here.
And just look at the crowd tonight so there's a lot of accounts.
With regards to your position that you're requesting, so I take it you had a
disagreement with the, your superiors about the need for an additional
personnel up in this area to help relieve your supervisor from responding
to all of these calls from Up country?
MR. CORREIA: Yeah. Because I, I don't think they, they believed that in this
Budget cycle it was necessary. One of the things that we found out in the
automated program is the super ... , if we only got one supervisor manning
the whole Up country area, that supervisor is going to be gone 100 percent
of the time.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLIN A: That's right.
MR. CORREIA: Because we've got cart deliveries constantly because we have a
fee-for-service system. So, people open accounts every day. They close
accounts every day. So we have to have somebody going out delivering
carts, picking up carts. So, we have a difference of opinion on if this
position is warranted.
Last year, I think they put in a clerk position for the Central area. I didn't
request that. It was put in by the Public Works Department because they
was getting, they were getting a lot of calls from the people. Okay. It's
not that I didn't need it, but I thought that I would wait one more year and
ask for the two positions at once.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, thank you for stepping up and
looking out for the needs of Upcountry. So, with the, when automation
does come, and I think everybody in the audience should be listening, too.
It's important to get educated about the use of, I guess, the new type of
can or cart. And not all of the streets will be automated, yeah, some
streets will still receive the old type of, I guess, the current type of service
that you provide because of the new, with the truck, automated trucks-MR. CORREIA: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --they cannot get to all those places.
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MR. CORREIA: In, in my mind there's five parts to this program. We've
already done three phases. The fourth phase is going to be what I just
mentioned. The fifth, fifth phase will be to deal with everything else.
These streets that we can't get into with these big trucks. I mean they're,
they're 20-yard, mechanical-arm trucks. Presently, we use 20-yarders.
My goal is to have 100 percent participation with carts. How we're going
to get there? I haven't gotten that far yet. But see the goal I think for, for
us is to have a comprehensive curbside collection program, which would
include trash, green waste, and recycling at the curb. That's the goal. .. ,
(applause) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank, thank you very much, George. I
think that's enough said and I appreciate you looking out for Up country , s
needs. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Mr. Correia, in this area that you are
describing that you cover from Ulupalakua all the way to Kailua and your
supervisor, is it possible that we could either get this back into the Budget
if you brought it forth to the Public Works directly?
MR. CORREIA: There's a possibility, I guess.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. CORREIA: I haven't talked with them about it.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Yeah.
MR. CORREIA: I did let them know that I was going to come to testify.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And that's fine. You know, I'm just saying
if you could go and see if somehow that can come to us in Public Works
and, and, and, and get the position, because you, you in the Up country
area you do have a giant geographical area. Maybe not the numbers might
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not be there, but the giant geographical area and I can understand the
needs. And they should have the same services as anywhere else on the
island. There should be no differentiation.
MR. CORREIA: Absolutely.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know so, you know, see if what you
can do in that area, then let us know. Okay, Glenn [sic].
MR. CORREIA: Okay. I'll try to do that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Mahalo, Chair.
George, thanks for
testifying. And you know, having worked with you for over 20 years
doing refuse collection and landfills, I know your frustrations. Regarding
the appliance pickup, do you see in the program that it has come to a point
where we need to have a crew dedicated to appliance pickup, a crew and
equipment?
MR. CORREIA: That's a tough question because as you know in refuse
collection we have what is called task work. There is no eight-hour
employees. So to dedicate a crew specifically for appliance pickup in
collection would be difficult, I think. It's not impossible. I mean we can,
in fact, we got to deal with that in the next round of negotiations with
UPW. That we, we, we, presently, we don't even have a contract for
appliance pickup. We're, we're just doing it because we got the extra
people. The alternative is to layoff people. So they allow us to do it but
they want to deal with it in the next round.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I, because I see going, you know, to
East Maui that we have a lot of appliances along the road. And I know
you guys pick it up as much as you can but, you know, there's leftovers or
people put it out later. So, I'm just wondering about that.
My second question is how's, how's your agency doing with the
equipment as far as replacing your equipment on time and as needed?
MR. CORREIA: We've, we've got a request for two automated replacements this
year in the budget. The automated trucks, between five and seven years,
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they need replacing. The manufacturer recommends that after three years
you rebuild that arm, and after six years you completely replace the arm.
To replace that, that mechanical arm it costs roughly $70,000.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Okay, George, because your, your
knowledge in this, you know, in refuse collection, I certainly would like to
see you, you know, as our resource person when we go over that budget
concerning refuse collection and, and the equipment. Thanks for being
here, George.
MR. CORREIA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Gordon Czernick.

Thank you, George.

Leonard Hasse, followed by

MR. HASSE: Council Members, I'm Leonard Hasse. I'm a property owner of
34 years up on Piiholo. I'm speaking on behalf of myself as a resident and
for the Olinda Community Association. This is my third time before the
Committee asking for funding support for the emergency interim repairs
ofPiiholo Road. That's a whole road network.
You've been very gracious. You've heard us in the past. You provided us
money. After, in 2004, when we got an appropriation, we felt it wasn't
enough. We came back in 2005, you gave us money then. They were
slow in getting the contract out. Cost of repairs doubled and they're only
doing half of the repairs that were originally designed.
We're here or I'm here seeking approval of funding to complete the
repairs of the first design and that's not to fix the whole road. That's just
doing emergency repairs that are hazardous to the people, hazardous to the
vehicles, and will do nothing but generate additional costs if they're, if
they're let go.
As I indicated, I'm a, I'm a civil engineer. I'm retired. The basis of the
problem is improper construction to begin with and the environment we're
faced with. It has, Piiholo and Olinda has a light, very thin layer of
asphalt. The road is edged by eucalyptus trees. The upper section has
pine trees. The roots have penetrated the pavement. The heavy traffic has
broken up the pavement.
I moved here in 1997, although, I've owned the property since 1972.
When I got here, the roads were passable. Today you can't drive up 'em,
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and without taking your life in your hands. We have a lot of blind curves.
We had a lot of root, ruts and roots, trees close to the edge of the road. On
blind curves people would try to avoid the ruts. They try to avoid the trees
that are right next to the road. They cross the center line, they take their
life in their hands.
If you haven't driven up Piiholo, just make a loop. Either go up through
Makawao Town up Olinda, go up the top, come back down Piiholo, you'll
see what I'm talking about. The funds requested does not include
repairing the washboard effect that we have in the upper edges of Piiholo
and Olinda. It's on State property. Pine trees are very close to the road.
They've grown over the years to the point that you can't get over some of
the bumps without damaging your vehicle. And if you're, and some of
'em are on a curve so if you're turning a curve you hit this bump, it throws
you off into the oncoming traffic.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. HASSE: So, we're appealing for the funding necessary to complete the
emergency repairs. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Leonard. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you for providing these pictures.
They're scary. Do you realize that in the Mayor's budget this year she
has, there was $400,000 allocated last year or whenever but previously ...
MR. HASSE: Four hundred thousand was the first year. Three hundred thousand
was the second, and they've estimated an additional 1 million to complete
the repairs that were originally designed. It would take another 2 million
to complete paving the whole road, which should be in the future. I
mean ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, you don't feel that the million dollars
appropriated this year is enough.
MR. HASSE: Oh, no. No. And if, like I said we appreciate any help you can
give us, third time before the well, and we really appreciate the support
you gave us in the past. But if you don't give the money now, it's pay
now or pay more later.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MR. HASSE: Yes, ma'am.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Leonard. Members, any more questions for
the testifier? Seeing none. Thank you.
MR. HASSE: Thank you. .., (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Gordon Czernick, followed by Susan Guille or
Guille.
MR. CZERNICK: Aloha, my name is Gordon Czernick. Thank you for letting
me speak this evening. Last week I delivered a petition to Council
Services including 21 names of my neighbors on West Kuiaha Road
asking your Committee to include the $50,000 requested by the
Department of Public Works for traffic calming on West Kuiaha Road.
I've lived and worked on my land as a forester and farmer for 21 years and
have really enjoyed the quiet country road. My neighbors and myself
have been concerned about dangerous speeding on our country road for
several years now.
In 2005, I contacted the Public Works and they responded by having a
consultant study traffic, traffic speed and volume, as well as Maui Police
Department traffic accident reports. The study concluded that traffic
calming is definitely required and needed on upper West Kuiaha Road.
Personally, I've often witnessed dangerous speeding while walking on the
road, biking, trying to exit onto the road with my own vehicle, and
mowing the grass along my roadside. Also, in the last couple of years,
two automobiles have crashed into my property. One taking out a power
pole, knocking out electricity, telephone, cable, for half a day to our whole
district, and then the, the vehicle ended up in my tree nursery. One taking
out a 40-foot section of an 18-year-old podocarpus hedge in front of my
property as well, and ending up laying on its side in my tenant's driveway.
Again, please include in this year's budget the $50,000 already requested
by Public Works for traffic calming on my road.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Gordon. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you again.
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MR. CZERNICK: Thanks a lot. .. , (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Susan Guille, followed by John Hirashima.
MS. GUILLE: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for the opportunity
to testify this evening. I'm Susan Guille. Some of you might have
remembered me when we were testifying for grant funds to build the Tom
Morrow Equestrian Center in Haiku at the 4th Marine Park. And why I'm
here tonight is I wanted to testify in support of the increased maintenance
budget that the Mayor has put into the, into the plan for parks.
Recently, you know, the Tom Morrow opened five years ago and we
totally maintain and take care of the facility on our own with our user fees
and with volunteers. But this year we had an opportunity come up where
we had five days of Kona winds and the 4th Marine Park has a reverse
Maalaea effect when the Kona winds blow and we get sometimes gusts up
there 80 miles an hour. And we lost about half the sand in the arena.
So, at that point, we needed to close it because it was no longer safe to ride
in. And our group we don't have any money basically. So, I went to, to
the Mayor, who in turn turned it over to Parks and the Parks Department
helped us purchase sand to put back in the arena so it's, would be usable
again for the 150 people in the community, children and adults, that use
the arena all the time.
And it made me realize that, you know, things come up, and this was out
of the safety fund and, and they really helped us out with it. But I realized
that all the parks on this island could be the jewels in the crown of Maui
and they're not. I mean I use the parks a lot. Just down here in this park
right here there's a children's playground that has had a fence and a
padlock on it for almost a year. It's not being repaired. It's right next to
the school. And I just wanted to say that I think Parks really needs some
help in the maintenance department.
We were fortunate that the Parks were able to help us with a few thousand
dollars to put some more sand into a facility that is used by a lot of people
in the community for recreation. It gets everybody off the streets with
their horses so it's a lot safer. So, as an individual I just wanted come
forward and say that please support increased maintenance funds for the
Parks Department, because like I said I just had the opportunity to find out
that things happen and it was nice that there was a little bit of money in
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there to help us out. So, thank you very much and I appreciate it. .. ,
(applause) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Susan. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you again.
MS. GUILLE: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: John Hirashima, followed by Jim Crowe.
MR. HIRASHIMA: My wife is passing out a little folder for each person here.
Chairman Pontanilla and Members of the Maui County Council Budget
and Finance Committee, my name is John Hirashima and I am here
tonight representing the residents of the Kula Kai neighborhood in Kula.
And we have a few of the residents here this evening. I would like to ask
them to please stand up. Yeah. We have a good turnout tonight. Thank
you very much.
During the approximately ... oh, I'm sorry, Kula Kai is a single-family
neighborhood that was developed in the late 1960s and consists of
approximately 150 homes, the vast majority of which is owner-occupied.
And we are a stable group and many of us have been living there for over
30 years.
During the approximately 40 years since being installed, the streets in
Kula Kai, literally, have had no maintenance except for the lower portion
of Ka Drive which was repaved a number of years ago, and the installation
of speed bumps, and the application of paint for stop lines recently. The
approximately 1.1 miles of roadway consisting of the mauka portion of
Ka Drive and all of Mano Drive, Kau Street, and Manu Street are
currently in various stages of disrepair. Grass grows extensively in much
of the pavement causing it to deteriorate rapidly. I have provided a couple
of photographs showing this condition.
And I, too, am a trained civil engineer. And the gentleman representing
the Piiholo neighborhood is completely right about the, the importance of
timely maintenance. We have sent requests to the former and current
County Administrations, as well as to the former and current Maui County
Council Public Works Committees for repair or repavement of our streets,
but so far we have not heard of any recommended remedies or cost
estimates.

- 29-

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2007 (pukalani)

It is generally understood that modest and timely investments in
maintenance can allay much greater efforts and costs later. And the
maintenance and repair of the streets to Kula Kai would fit this category
very well. Since at the moment there's no monetary amount we can
request, I would like our presence and testimony to lay the groundwork for
inclusion of this project in your Budget when such figures are available,
which we hope will be soon. Thank you for holding this hearing close to
our community and I will be happy to answer any questions you might
have.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
testifier?

Thank you, John.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Question.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Mr. Hirashima. Do you have
any past documentation of letters that you sent to the Public Works
Committee, the former Mayors, Mayor. . .I would presume Arakawa,
Apana, Mayor Lingle's? Can you present that to the Committee?
MR. HIRASHIMA: We would be happy to.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and because, and I believe our current
Mayor Tavares who represents the Kula area, too I'm sure, you know, did
you send documents to her as well when she was on the Council?
MR. HIRASHIMA: Yes, we did.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And Public Works Department as well?
MR. HIRASHIMA: Uh-huh. Yes, we had a meeting with the Mayor and with
Milton Arakawa in the Mayor's lounge, and we had, you know, a nice
group of residents and we had a nice meeting. And but, you know, so far
we haven't heard of anything.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, if, if I may ask what transpired from
those meetings ... urn ...
MR. HIRASHIMA: They were going to look into it.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MR. HlRASHIMA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: It hasn't been put in the Mayor's Budget yet?
MR. HlRASHIMA: It has not been. Not as far as I know it has not. And you
know we haven't heard anything about, you know, whether it's, it's doable
or, you know, any cost estimates or what the recommended remedies
would be. Of course, we would all like to see repavement. That's, you
know, that's nice and smooth, and you know, everything is nice and
pretty. But we are, you know, it, what seems to happen is that there is
zero maintenance, then real expensive repairs. You know, repaving is real
expensive and there's nothing in between.
So, you know, by the time you wait it's going to be expensive. We are in
a situation now that the pavement can be saved without a complete
repavement. In some areas probably that's appropriate but in other areas
we can save the pavement, we can save the water from, prevent the water
from destroying the base. For all of these asphalt pavements, the, the base
is the strength of the pavement. If you destroy that with excess loads or
excess moisture, then you've got a bad road.
And as you probably have seen you can repave Makawao Avenue over
and over and over again, but the failed sections always appear within a
few months. It's just the way it is. We can prevent that in Kula Kai if we
take some timely action .... (end a/tape, start 2A) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: We'll continue our deliberations during the
Committee meetings we'll try and get some more answers from the
Department on this. Thank you.
MR. HlRASHIMA: Okay. Any other questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yes. The correspondence that you sent to
the Pubic Works Committee, I don't remember receiving that and I'm one
of the co-chairs of that Committee.
Was that sent through the
Administration or did you send it directly to us?
MR. HlRASHIMA: I think I, I think my wife handled that one.
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MS. HlRASHIMA: It was before the current change of Administration .
. . .(laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah, I couldn't hear what she said.
MS. HlRASHIMA: It was before the current change of Administration.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. So, you didn't send it to the current
Public Works Committee?
MS. HlRASHIMA: No. It was the previous.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Previous one.
MR. HlRASHIMA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for that. And as, as ...
MR. HlRASHIMA: And I stand corrected. I'm sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. As an engineer, do you think a
remedy could be between a seal coat and, and, and a resurfacing?
MR. HIRASHIMA: A seal coat is, is very doable. What you need to do is to
remove all the grass that's growing in there and probably with some sort
of a power and high-pressure water situation.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. HlRASHIMA: And then seal all of those wide cracks -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. HIRASHIMA:
cheaper,--

--then seal the entire pavement after that, which is far

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. HlRASHIMA: --far, far cheaper than complete repavement.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
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MR. HlRASHIMA: Now, you know, we, we would love to see a repavement but
you know we're hearing things about Piiholo Road - it's dangerous. And
our condition is not particularly dangerous but it's going to be real
expensive, because we got a lot of road in our neighborhood and it's a
very, very old neighborhood for, you know, these parts.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. You know I, you know, I worked in
Public Works for 31 years-MR. HlRASHIMA: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --so, I know by your pictures a seal coat
would work for you and it would be the less, least expensive of all the
remedies.
MR. HlRASHIMA: You can't just seal coat it now.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No, you got to remove the grass.
MR. HlRASHIMA: You have to prepare it-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. HlRASHIMA: --so that you get rid of the grass,-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. HlRASHIMA: --fill all the cracks.
COUNCILMEMBERMEDEIROS: Yeah, we've done it before.
MR. HlRASHIMA: Yeah. Right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Thanks for your testimony.

Yeah.

So, we'll, we'll look into that.

MR. HlRASHIMA: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, John.
Member Anderson.
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COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No. He answered the question.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Fine. Thank you. John, for your information
we'll be meeting with the Public Works Department sometime in the
future, as well as reviewing all of the capital improvement projects that are
geared for 2008. And at that time, I, I would suggest that you come out
and testify again.
MR. HlRASHIMA: I'd be happy to. In the meanwhile, maybe you can issue us a
couple goats to eat the grass .... (laughter) . .. Anyway ...
CHAIRPONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
MR. HlRASHIMA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Jim Crowe, followed by Luana Kaaihue.
MR. CROWE: My name is Jim Crowe. I'm the MEO Youth Services Director.
We have AmeriCorps and Youth Bank. I'm just here to introduce these
really good looking young people from AmeriCorps and also heroic young
people. I am so honored to have them working here on Maui for our
environment.
MS. KAAIHUE: My warmest aloha goes out to you. My name is Luana
Kaaihue. I live on Molokai and I am an AmeriCorps volunteer. For those
of you who are not that familiar, AmeriCorps is administered through the
MEO Youth Bank. And on behalf of the other volunteers from Maui and
Molokai, I would like to thank you all for your continued support for the
AmeriCorps program.
We are all placed with agencies throughout the County and we all work on
conservation projects. And I truly believe we do make a difference in
preserving and restoring the native plants and animals of Hawaii. And for
myself, I have been placed in Kalaupapa. I, I work in Kalaupapa on
Molokai. And I must say that it has been a highlight in my life and
through AmeriCorps I am doing this.
And also through AmeriCorps each one of us are granted educational
awards, which we are able to use to attend school. For myself, I've used
my AmeriCorps award to pay an old debt that lowed for schooling, and,
and because I was able to do that I am now registered and attending MCC
again after all these years. So, you know, on behalf of everyone besides
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giving our mahalo to you, we would also request that you continue your
support for the AmeriCorps Program through MEO. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
testifying?

Thank you.

Jim, any more members going to be

MR. CROWE: No. Not from AmeriCorps. The next young man is from Youth
Bank.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay.
MR. CROWE: No, they're not going to testify.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. Hang around.
MR. CROWE: Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: We do have a question for you though.
MR. CROWE: Yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Jim.
MR. CROWE: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Could some, Luana, can you tell us, or maybe you
can tell us what other agencies that the members are, are stationed at?
MR. CROWE: Donna.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We heard on Molokai-MR. CROWE: Donna.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: --about what, what you're doing.
MR. CROWE: Yeah, Donna, Donna will help us.
MS. KAAIHUE: For myself I am placed with the National Park Service,
Kalaupapa National Historical Park.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Donna.
MS. BODE: The other agencies that the members are placed with is the Nature
Conservancy on Molokai, also with the Soil Conservation there. And then
here on Maui it is Haleakala National Park, Department of Land and
Natural Resources, Division of Wildlife, and also with the Maui Coastal
Land Trust.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you. It certainly shows you're really out
there working on conserving our environment, which is so important to all
of us.
MS. BODE: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any more questions? Seeing none. Thank
you. At this time, Kirk Bode. Oh, Kirk Bode, followed by Joe Keanini.
MR. BODE: Good evening, Council Members. I'm here to talk about the Maui
Youth Bank. My son has been in it for some years now and I appreciate
your continued support for the Youth Bank. They do a lot of different
things from working in taro patches to going up in the mountain doing
team building, camping, all kinds of sorts of different things.
They really enjoy it and they learn a lot and they also have classes that
they do, too. I mean my son has taken classes to learn how to go to job
interviews. And they lot, do a lot of different things and he looks forward
to going, and he really appreciates it.
A lot of the areas that they've gone in the last couple years is areas that
some places you can't go anymore that they get, they get permission to go
into. You know places that I've been raised going that are either fenced
off, or you know, no access anymore but they are able to get some access.
So, I appreciate your continued support for the Youth Bank.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joe. Members, any question for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you again. Joe Keanini and Sally Keanini.
MR. KEANINI: Hello. My name is Joseph Keanini. I hope you guys appreciate
what we doing for the park. And we trying our best to keep the parks
clean. We work so hard and trying our best to keep it clean. And I hope
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you guys ... (pause) ... what we doing in the parks. And that's all I get
for say for right now. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joe. Sally.
MS. KEANINI: Hi, my name is Sally Keanini. I work for Ka Lima 0 Maui.
And we take care the parks and stuff like that. And we clean 'em, we rake
'em, we lawnmower everything to keep it more clean that as best as you
guys like was we wanted to clean. So, now, I think that's all I needed to
say.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions?
Dana Jones, followed by Chantal Ratte.

Thank you.

MR. JONES: Thank you, Council Members. I live up in the top ofPiiholo Road
and Leonard asked me to mention to you the pictures he passed out to you
are sections that aren't included in the proposed improvements. The last
time, this is my third year coming before you and we greatly appreciate
your help. We've very thankful for Mike Molina and all the time you've
spent taking care of us. We greatly appreciate it.
What was said about the cars disregarding the lane markings is very true.
People are trying to save their vehicles so we had people driving down the
center of the road. The last time the road was repaved was January of
1989. And the amount of rain that we get up there, the amount of
construction that's taken place up there, it's, it's real difficult to let a road
go for that length of time, especially that steep a grade with that kind of
rainfall. It's a cumulative effect.
And the road is a safety hazard. We greatly appreciate the fact that you've
remembered us in previous years. We hope that there might be a
possibility to get funding that would help address some of the areas that
you saw in the pictures that aren't currently scheduled for paving. But
there have been a number of accidents up there and it's a safety hazard.
But as a long-time resident we appreciate your help and we hope that
Piiholo Road will, will be a priority. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Dana. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Seeing none. Thank you again.
MR. JONES: Thanks .... (applause) . ..
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chantal Ratte, followed by Richard Yust.
MS. RATTE: That was a long walk. Good evening and thank you for the
opportunity to come here tonight in front of you. I'm Chantal Ratte. I'm
the Executive Director with Ka Lima 0 Maui. I'm sure you all know Ka
Lima has been around for over 50 years. Our mission, in one sentence, is
to enhance the lives of adults with disabilities through self-reliance.
The way we accomplish that, our biggest program is employment
program, training and employment program through contracts with the
County. So, I am here to request, we have put in a request for a 5 percent
increase in our County contracts with the Parks Department, the Police
Department, the Fire Department, and the landfill, Public Works.
In total, all of those contracts they provide employment for over 40 adults
with disabilities. We maintain 17 parks throughout the County, Central
and the South side. If it wasn't for those contracts many, you know, those,
that special population would, would be, their lives would drastically
change. They wouldn't, you know, they would have to stay home more
than likely. So, we thank you for your past support and we ask you for
your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier at
this time? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Your equipment, your vehicles where does
that come from?
MS. RATTE: We try to set up a depreciation fund and fund it as much as
possible. We also write grants to try to purchase, to help us purchase
those vehicles and, and equipment.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And your employees are paid through your
organization?
MS. RATTE: Yes. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Member Victorino.

- 38 -

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE
Council of the County of Maui
March 28, 2007 (pukalani)

COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
now?

How many special clients do you have

MS. RATTE: In total we serve about 200 per year. We have about, we have over
50 on payroll, and then we also have a waiver Medicaid Program, which is
not vocationally-orientated, and we have about 15 consumers in that Adult
Day Health Program. And we serve about a total of, probably, close to
100 through our community job placement programs where we'll place
adults with disabilities into employment in the community not necessarily
at KaLima.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Well, you know, I've had many years of
watching and experiencing your, your people and the special things they
do like the Keanini's and many others. And it's, it's a special part, part of
our community that sometimes is forgotten and left behind.
MS. RATTE: I agree.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: You know and so we need to, and as a
community, needs to respect that and to continue to help you and all these
agencies make them feel like their just like us - people.
MS. RATTE: They're, they're not a very outspoken population so you're right.
A lot of times they get overlooked.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: That is correct. And sometimes like in
Molokai there was not so much Ka Lima but a group that, that does
similar work and-MS. RATTE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --that their, their equipment was stolen and
broken into seven times in three years.
MS. RATTE: I recall that.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: And then there you could see the special
hurt. And I think it's appalling that people even think that way but that's
another genera ... , another issue and I won't get into it. But thank you for
your continued support.
MS. RATTE: You're welcome.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Chantal. Richard Yust. Members,
Mr. Yust is going to be the last testifier before we take a recess. Mr. Yust.
MR. YUST: Thank you, Council Members. My name is Richard Yust. I am, I'm
the President/CEO of the Maui Food Bank. And I'm gonna, gonna ask
you today for your continued support for the line item budget of the
200,000 that was given to us last year. We're going to ask for it again for
this year.
Our numbers keep going up. Last year we distributed 1.15 million pounds
of food through a network of over 70 agencies. We're the only non-profit
on Maui that collects and salvages typically discarded food. And last year
we basically salvaged through about a million and a half pounds in order
to get a 1.1 million pounds. So, roughly, about 30 percent ends up to the
pig farmer. So, it still stays in the system but it's not going in the trash, in
the landfill. So, your continued, your continued support of course would
be vital to allow us to keep running our operation successfully.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Richard. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Victorino.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Richard, how many, approximately, how
many people do you service? And I know that will vary from time of year
and all that but a rough estimate so this community can understand-MR. YUST: Certainly.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: --there are a lot more hungry people out
there than we are lead to believe.
MR. YUST: Very true. We, we average between five to seven thousand people
per month that are serviced through the network of these agencies.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Five to seven thousand people.
MR. YUST: Yeah. And, and that's actually a low number I believe. I think
more people are actually getting fed through these agencies who may be
coming for distribution, taking the food home, and feeding the family, and
they're not reporting those family numbers.
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COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO:
So, you estimate, what, another
10, 20 percent? What would you, what would your best educated guess be
in that respect?
MR. YUST: My guess would be it's, it's, minimum 20 percent higher than the
five to seven thousand that are reporting.
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Thank you very much, that's very sobering.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Member Victorino. Members, any more
questions for the testifier? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Hi, Richard.
MR. YUST: Hi, Gladys.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thanks for being here tonight. A question. My,
my question is more or less about where you get your food from and how
do you support your agency? I know that the County contribution is a
small part of your operations. Can you kind of tell us a little bit about
that? I think it might be helpful for people to understand your, your job.
And I want to thank you very much. You're an integral part of this
community and people would be starving-MR. YUST: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: --without the Food Bank.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Richard, thank, thank you for being here.
MR. YUST: I'll be happy to answer Gladys's question. Yeah. We have, we
actually have daily collections where we run routes to the retailers, the
wholesalers. We actually have new programs, which is a prepared food
program where we're picking, picking up unserved prepared food from the
hotels, restaurants, caterers. And then we take that directly to a resource
center and to the Salvation Army and those types of agencies.
We also have a fresh produce program. So, if there's any produce people
out here who have extra and even, even from family farms. We also have
a produce program where we will take that directly to agencies as well.
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Produce is extremely valuable resource nutrition-wise to the people who
are hungry.
And, you know, one of the other things that we've started is a senior
mobile pantry, which is delivering quality protein types of food to seniors.
And that recently started in October and it has been expanding steadily.
And we're getting ready to start a new program come June, which is a
collaboration with the Boys and Girls Club and the Maui Community
College, the culinary, to where the culinary will make the food. We'll,
we'll provide the food, culinary will make the food; we'll deliver it to the
Boys and Girls Clubs. They will then be able to feed the kids hot food
when they're, especially the hungry kids and which there's many of
unfortunately.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Richard. Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair. Richard, if any, do your
organization play a role in natural disasters, catastrophes, and so forth in
the community?
MR. YUST: Yes, Bill. We actually are a disaster relief agency. We actually, we
were called into, I guess, into duty come the October earthquake when we
had the block-off of the road out in Kaupo and Kipahulu. We actually
airlifted, we didn't physically airlift, but we dropped food off to the
National Guard who airlifted that food to those areas to provide
emergency food relief. And they were glad to have it because they were
actually, you know, they had been cutoff for quite a while and we were
called in to do that.
If, if we were to have a natural disaster, we are part of the, the Maui
VOAD, which is Volunteer Organizations Assisting in Disasters. We will
actually fall under direct jurisdiction of the Red Cross to provide relief to
the shelters. So, we've been slowly gearing up our disaster preparedness.
We have disaster retreats every year. We are now equipped with ham
radios and licensed to use 'em. We also have emergency rations available
to be airlifted anyplace on the island.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
Maui--

Yeah, as the Representative from East

MR. YUST: Yeah.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --and including Kipahulu and Kaupo, we
thank you for that. And you did say you collaborate with the Red Cross?
MR. YUST: Yes. We actually will fall directly, collaborate with them in case of
a disaster. Because one thing the Red Cross does not have is access to
food come. . .if they have to set up a shelter. You know, example, this
building people have to, have to come here to evacuate, we will then
provide the food for those, for those disaster shelters. And we can actually
and we work out with the helicopter association to have it air flown in if it
needs be as well and the National Guard.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Richard. Mahalo, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Member Medeiros. Thank you, Richard.
MR. YUST: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, at this time, we're going to take a short
recess. We'll reconvene at 7:40. When we come back from recess, the
next testifiers will be Calvin Shibuya and Dr. Sword. So, at this time the
Chair will call for a recess .... (gavel) ...... (end a/tape, start 3A) . . .
RECESS:

7:32 p.m.

RECONVENE:

7:46 p.m.

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: ... (gavel) . .. The Budget and Finance Committee
meeting is now reconvened. At this time, I'd like to call on Calvin
Shibuya, Dr. Sword, and Earl Lamuara [sic].
MR. SHIBUYA: Lamadora.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Oh, Lamadora. Lamadora. Hey, you got to write, you
got to print neatly. .., (laughter) . ..
MR. SHIBUYA: Good evening. Thank you for allowing us to testify tonight.
Dr. Sword got called away on an emergency, but he just wanted to iterate
one thing that through the Makawao Main Street Association, which we're
representing tonight, he has been able to make issues vocal to the, to the
Council. Issues such as traffic safety in Makawao, the preservation of
culture in Makawao, and the controlling of growth in Makawao. Those
are the three things he wanted me to, to pass on tonight.
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For me I just want to say thank you for supporting the Makawao Main
Street Association in the past and request that you continue the support for
this year. As you know, our main goal is to preserve what we have
especially in Makawao, a small town, and the ambience of, of a small
town. And without Makawao Main Street Association I think Makawao
today would be like a Kihei or a Lahaina and we don't want to see that
happen to Makawao. So, we ask for your continued support. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Calvin. Earl.
MR. LAMADORA: Thank you very much. As my supervisor here said that
Makawao is very unique to Maui. And once a small town like Makawao
goes all of the goodies, goodies, right, Kitada's, all of those things will be
gone and you won't find them again. Also, I wanted to say that you know
all of the, these, we're here for this Budget, but basically a lot of the
Budget things we should remember the children. Those Boys and Girls
Clubs and all of those other groups, the children, 'cause one of these days
they going be here where you're at and they going be in there doing the
same thing. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chairman. I guess, Calvin and
Earl, you know in the Budget there's a $250,000 appropriation to do a
study on the bike tours that come through Makawao town. And I know
Makawao Main Street has been very active in the past with their
comments. Do you have any additional comments with regards to the
appropriation to do a study on the bike tours and its impact on Makawao
town?
MR. SHIBUYA: Well, that's, that's a really sore subject. And it's been going on
for over ten years now. And as you've read in the newspaper, it's got to
be regulated somehow. It's got to be controlled. The traffic impact on,
on, that the bike tours has created has never been studied and I think that
has to be done. Number one, a traffic impact study.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any more questions? Thank you
very much.
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MR. SHIBUYA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Scofield.

The next testifiers are Trisha Grimley and Susan

MS. SCOFIELD: Good evening. My name is Susan Scofield, Principal of King
Kekaulike High School. And I have two helpers. We have Trisha
Grimley, faculty member, and we have Juliana Massenburg who is our
PTSA president. And tonight I'd like to ask for consideration of possible
funding for a study regarding traffic and pedestrian safety around our
schools. And we'd like to, we were informed by Representative Kyle
Yamashita that this is an opportunity for State and County collaboration
and coordination in order to provide safe school routes.
And Trisha had, I guess, faxed a letter regarding the traffic congestion, the
left turns into the campus as well as from Makawao Avenue into
Haleakala Highway. A study could take a look at the timing, the need for
additional features to improve safety. I basically wanted to talk about
pedestrian safety because our students walk to and from the campus.
One area that I would like included in the study is the area from the school
to Pukalani, I guess, by the Superette or so. After school our students
walk there for a bite to eat, as well as McDonalds, as well as Minit Stop
and there is no sidewalk from the school to the Superette area. So, I'd like
someone to take a look at that. Coupled with a lot of our drivers are real
new drivers and they are going to the same destinations because they are
starving at two o'clock. And so that pretty much impacts the safety of the
pedestrians.
Another area that I think we would like people to look at or people to
study is the pedestrian safety on Makawao Avenue itself from the Kalama
School to the Eddie Tam Gym. Students make use of the facilities, the
park, what the, that the park offers as well as other organizations there.
We're looking at that. There's no sidewalk from I guess Kalama School
to Eddie Tam Gym. There is a sidewalk from Eddie Tam Gym to
Makawao Town Proper.
There's a lot of traffic there not only because of the residents but because
there's a lot of local people and tourist who love to go to Makawao town
for a variety of reasons. And so, we would like our students to remain
safe and so could a study be commissioned to take a look at all the safety
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factors? Including crosswalks, there are two crosswalks to go to Eddie
Tam facilities. Now, should it be raised just to slow down the vehicular
traffic and let our kids have the opportunity to cross safely?
So, we are asking for possible funding for this. We're asking for possible
coordination with the State. There may be funds available in terms of safe
school routes. So, that's what we are asking tonight.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifiers?
Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for being here. First of all, there,
there is money in the budget-MS. SCOFIELD: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --to do I guess the sidewalks from Makani
Road up to Eddie Tam Gym.
MS. SCOFIELD: Oh, okay. Good.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: But I know at a recent meeting that was held at
the school there were concerns about the crosswalk-MS. SCOFIELD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --and I think that's something the Department
could take a look at and we can, when we do have our continued
deliberations with the Department, it's something that we could bring up.
And in terms of the, do you offhand have a number, the total number of
drivers, student drivers on campus?
MS. SCOFIELD: Too many .... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Too many. Do you have a high bus ridership or
is the majority of the students like to drive to school?
MS. SCOFIELD: Our older students like to drive to school. And so, they are in
the student parking lot along Kula Highway. The bus people are on the
Haleakala Highway entrance in the back of the school. So, about-MS. GRIMLEY: ... (inaudible) ...
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MS. SCOFIELD: She said about 400 cars. But there's a lot of cars.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Right. And, and it's not only your school. We
know there's parents that are bringing their kids from the Pukalani side
over to Kalama, which causes that big traffic-MS. SCOFIELD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --congestion-MS. SCOFIELD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --at that area with everything else.
MS. SCOFIELD: Yes. And then we have Kamehameha right above our school
so there's a lot of traffic.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: So, well, we'll look forward to trying to work
with the State and get something resolved with this matter. Thank you.
MS. SCOFIELD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
followed by John Brooks.

The next testifier is Warren Watanabe

MR. WATANABE: Good evening, Chairman Pontanilla, Members of the Budget
Committee. My name is Warren Watanabe, President of Maui County
Farm Bureau. The Maui County Farm Bureau appreciates the many years
of support provided by the County of Maui. Agriculture is the second,
second leading economic sector for the County and provides many other
benefits to the community. We thank Mayor Tavares and the Office of
Economic Development for the increase in Fiscal 2008.
This amount is consistent with the direction the Administration, and
hopefully, the Council views agriculture in Maui's future. Sufficient
resources need to be committed for our agriculture to be competitive in the
world market. We have begun several programs to increase public
awareness of the importance of the agricultural industry.
Ag in the Classroom began in, began last year with school presentations
and a field day at the Kula Ag Park. The second grade is getting hands-on
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experiences in agriculture. This year we will go to nine schools and again
culminate with a field day at a working farm. We will continue to expand
on this program and use this model as a pilot for Statewide Ag in the, Ag
in the Classroom Program through the Hawaii Farm Bureau Federation.
We will also partner with the Maui Economic Development Board to
develop an Educate the Educator program focusing on agriculture. This
will assure our children are taught agriculture in the schools. The program
will teach the value of agriculture and in the longer term create interest in
agriculture as a career path.
Another program we plan to expand and improve on is Grown on Maui.
The intent is to improve the farmers and ranchers viability. We will
continue to work with more retailers, restaurants, and hotels. Marketing of
products will also be on the neighbor islands. The industry's marketing
skills will be refined to meet our changing in technology. And you must
remember if the farms and ranches are not viable, all you have is open
space. Sustainability means productive agriculture.
Maui County Farm Bureau will be launching the premier agriculture event
Maui County Ag Festival. It will be held on June 3, 2007, at the War, War
Memorial Soccer Field. We all remember the Ulupalakua thing; well, we
would like to create a new tradition. This event will be the culmi ... ,
culmination of a celebration ofMaui County's agriculture.
There are many other issues that impact agriculture success such as labor,
water, transportation, land, et cetera, and the list goes on. Maui County
Farm Bureau will assist our farmers and ranchers to find possible
resolutions to these issues. We ask for your support as we address these
concerns. The County General Plan with Focus Maui, Focus Maui Nui
principles is being updated, and policies can be incorporated to implement
agricultural viability.
Maui County Farm Bureau and the commodity groups within our
organization thank you for your continuous support. Together we can
make agriculture in Maui County continue to be a valuable asset to this
community. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Warren. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you. John. John Brooks, followed by Alfred Boteilho.
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MR. BROOKS: Good evening, Mr. Chairman and Committee Members. My
name is Bobby Brooks and I'm the Vice-President of the Maui County
Farm Bureau. And I've been involved with agriculture on Maui for over
35 years. I'd like to thank you for this opportunity to provide input on the
Mayor's proposed Budget for 2008. I'm here tonight to speak in support
of several of the line items, line item requests contained in the Economic
Development Program package specifically those relating to agriculture
and protecting our environment.
Warren did a good job of asking for your support for the Farm Bureau.
So, I'm not going to spend a lot of time repeating that. What I think is
important is to understand that traditionally Maui County has been a home
for agriculture on both a large and small scale. And we need this, we need
for this to continue. Historically, we in the business of farming and
ranching have continued to garner support from our County, State, and
Federal Governments. That much-appreciated support has come in both
verbal and physical forms; however, there's some disturbing trends
starting to appear.
Unfortunately, on the Federal level, farmers and ranchers as well as
researchers and educators are fighting, are fighting funding losses that will
have significant impacts on our ability to continue our business. Cuts in
the US Department of Agriculture's budgets are jeopardizing our
watershed funding. This will affect projects currently underway: the
Lahaina Flood Protection Project and the Up country Dual Ag Line
Project.
The USDA Farm Bill included serious cutbacks for producers of minor
crops, as well as farmers and ranchers wishing to participate in land and
environmental protection projects. For your edification, pineapple is
considered a minor crop. National Resources and Conservation Services
representation and conservation work, conservation project work will be
severely reduced due to funding shortages.
Remember that the Soil and Water Conservation Districts provide review
and approval services for project grading and drainage requests from
construction and development companies as well as developing
conservation plans for home and property owners. All of this for basically
no charge to the County. The Maui Invasive Species Committee will
expenence substantial funding cuts in this upcoming, upcoming budget
cycle.
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The University of Hawaii's College of Tropical Agriculture and Human
Resources stands to lose six to eight million dollars in funding from
USDA Farm Bills. The organizations involved in this are taking the battle
to Washington but the outlook is not rosy. While you can't farm without
land, you also cannot farm without water and infrastructure. At the State
and County level, efforts to provide the incentive programs that are needed
to give the important agricultural lands bill its muscle are not fairing well.
Bills that would provide tax credit for infrastructure development, ag
housing, dependable water supplies to landowners and farmers all need
help. Drought mitigation programs have been developed and need
County-level support and input to be actively put into place. Water supply
systems are partially built but need to be finished.
State funding programs that would further the work into these areas are
also becoming harder to attain. Last year, at least four of Maui's best
farmers gave up farming. The specific reasons varied but the root reason
was economics. They did not see farming providing a secure future-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. BROOKS: --for their families. Lack of support in the local marketplace,
increasing cost of materials, uncertainty over water availability, labor
shortages, transportation, and quality are all on the list. We continue to
hold that agriculture is important and vital to Hawaii but we can't get the
basic things we need to continue and expand.
The Maui County Farm Bureau strongly supports all of the ag and
environmental funding requests that are in the, the Mayor's Budget. All of
those things need to be continued. All of them are facing funding
jeopardies from upper level sources. We need all the help we can get and
we actively hope that you will be able to support these things. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John.
testifier? Member Anderson.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
Thank you, Mr. Brooks, for this
well-written testimony. Can you just give us a brief update on what's
going on at the State with the funding for the dual waterline?
MR. BROOKS: The real problem at this point appears to be the loss of, of the
Federal funds. The, the State is working on the, on the State level funding.
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And, and Warren is, is very much aware of this and can help me answer
the question possibly better.
MR. W AT ANABE: To answer your question for the dual line Up country it is in
the Governor's Budget. So, it's a bi-annum for $3 million. Three million,
bi-annum.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
complete it?

And so, is that going to be enough to

MR. WATANABE: Well, we doing it in phases. That's, that's, I'm not sure
what, to what, what, what area it will go to but we're doing it in phases. I
believe there's two or three, about two more phases on the project.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So that means like two more years beyond
this year before, if the funding stays because ...
MR. W AT ANABE: I would, I would say longer than that.
projected timeline for completion was 2012, I, believe.

I think the, the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh.
MR. BROOKS: But, but the problem, Council Member, is that if we lose the
Federal side of it, then all else is, is for nothing because it's matching
funds. The State and County funds match what would come from the Fed,
and if we lose the Fed the whole thing is pfft ... gone.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So then they have Federal funding for the
3 million in the State budget this year?
MR. WATANABE: We do have the Federal match for that, that portion.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: But based on the cuts that we're seeing now
you're anticipating that you're not going to get funding in the future-MR. BROOKS: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --from the Federal Government.
MR. BROOKS: That's correct. And, and it would be relatively immediate.
Whatever fundings might have already been garnered and, and locked up
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would be it. But, but then within the year perhaps the, the, you know,
anything further would be lost.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, just one quick question, Chair. Ifwe go
through this next phase, which would be Phase Two with the current
funding. Is that Phase Two?
MR. WATANABE: Again, you know, it's several phase, I believe it's Phase
Three. Yeah, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Phase Three. And there is five phases?
MR. W AT ANABE: Approximately. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So ...
MR. WATANABE: Because it's, it's supposed to go all the way towards the
DHHL lands in Keokea.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It's supposed to go to Keokea.
MR. WATANABE: Right.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, if it stops at this phase, this coming
phase that you're getting funding for this year, where will it stop? How
far will that take it?
MR. BROOKS: They're, they're to Kimo Drive right now.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: They're to Kimo Drive now, but if they
expend the money that's currently budgeted for this year, how far will it
take the line?
MR. WATANABE: I believe it will take it to where I farm so that's good, that's
good. .., (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: No wonder you're smiling.
MR. WATANABE:
Waipoli Road.

Yeah.

It's, it's by the forest reserve, you know,

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: It will go to Waipoli Road.
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MR. W AT ANABE: Yeah. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and, Warren, since you do farm there
you must know who your competitors are or your, your colleagues are.
So, how many farmers would it serve if it got to Waipoli Road?
MR. WATANABE: Oh, I would say maybe about, I mean, it, it depends what
your definition of a farm is, too, right. I mean I would say ... urn ...
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Real farmers.
MR. WATANABE: Real? ... (laughter) . ..
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Real farmers. Strawberries, onions.
MR. W AT ANABE: Maybe about 25, 30. Although, you need to, I think it
would, part of it was to develop, you know, available like Haleakala
Ranch lands they wanted to sublease to farmers. So, you know, those are
lands that not, not currently in production but could be in production.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. BROOKS: Council Member, also I think it's important to remember that
with the opening of the Hawaiian Homes farming areas out there at
Keokea and Waipoli they would be coming off of the same line.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: If it gets to that.
MR. BROOKS: And, and, and we don't know how many farmers actually would
be in those subdivisions that are being built.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, John. Thank you.
MR. BROOKS: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: The next testifier is Alfred Boteilho, followed by Greg
Pereira.
MR. BOTEILHO: Good evening. My name is Al Boteilho, Alfred Boteilho and
I'm representing Heritage Hall. This got to be important because I, I
missed the American Idol. ... (laughter) . .. Aw, I know. I know. The
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Heritage Hall is for real. We have an office at the Cameron Center,
Room 12. We have the designation from the Federal Government. We're
a non-profit. We're for real. We got the land from A&B. We're raising
money.
We, we stand at, on the Budget as a line item under Historical Cultural
Preservation Page 13-8 is our line item. And, and that's for us to get our,
our building designed. The Heritage Hall is a combination of the Maui
Puerto Rican Association and the Portuguese Association ofMaui.
I'm on the Board of that, of the Heritage Hall and I'm also the President of
the Portuguese Association of Maui. The, the intent for this hall is there
will be two buildings, and one will be classrooms and meeting halls and
the other will be a hall that people can use. There will be a kitchen and
dancing and, you know, Puerto Ricans know what that means. Portuguese
knows what that means. We all do.
And Paia is in need of that. It's a center Boy Scouts can use, the
community, Paia School. We, we plan on having direct contact with
Portugal, Puerto Rico so the school kids can converse with each other and,
and keep some grasp of our heritage. It's not just a big hall and, and some
things to put a flag and say ha ha that's us.
We want to teach the next generation. We want to expand our culture and
continue it on to the next generation. Even though they maybe only
one-eighth Portuguese or one-eighth Puerto Rican, they can go and find
out their heritage. And we need your guys help. That has to stay in there.
We need the money.
This, this is going to cost a lot of money. As you guys know, anybody
who has ever tried, the Filipinos and all the rest, they had their problems.
And we are two organizations that got together saying that, you know, we
could have gone for two separate buildings but it's so much better that we
come with one. A joint thing and say this is how we can do it and be
efficient. And we can work together and it will just benefit the
community, our whole community.
And it's a rich heritage. We both have very rich heritage and it's
necessary to pass it on. And keep that in the Budget, guys. Thank you,
guys.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for the testifier?
Thanks again, AI.
MR. BOTEILHO: Thank you. .., (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Greg Pereira, followed by David Lindsay.
MR. PEREIRA: Aloha. I'm Greg Pereira. I'm Vice-President of Heritage,
Heritage Hall. And thank you for coming tonight. We are Line Item 13-8
just so we can put a name on it for the Historical and Cultural Preservation
Project. It is for Heritage Hall. And we have a nice marriage here. We
have the Puerto Rican community; we have the Portuguese community
joined together. And we bought this land. We put our money together.
We have quite an investment right now. We're asking for your help to
leave this in and, and develop a center that can not only benefit the
community but preserve our culture.
And we need that funding for Piiholo Road and Olinda Road, and support
agriculture, and invasive species. Aloha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Greg.
testifier? Thanks again.

Members, any questions for the

MR. PEREIRA: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: David Lindsay, followed by Kat Lui.
MR. LINDSAY: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for the
opportunity. This one concerns, our concerns about the condition of
Piiholo and Olinda Road. My family has owned the property up there at
2695 Piiholo since before World War II. I learned to drive on Piiholo
when it was a dirt road.
I'm not advocating going back to dirt road because it gets slippery when
it's wet. Believe me. But when it got rough all I had to do is go up and
grade the road. It got smooth again, you know. So that can't happen
where there's pavement obviously. And we are very thankful we live
right at the top, right at the junction ofPiiholo and Olinda because we can
go down Olinda.
But we believe that those folks down in Piiholo really need your help. I
cannot longer drive my, I will not drive my sedan down that road because
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it shakes it up too bad. If the trees fall, of course, that's a different story.
We got to go. But. .. uh ... the primary issue for our family is the
absolute safety hazard posed by the tree root upheaval of the pavement in
the upper area of both roads.
For example, in front of the Bird Sanctuary on Olinda Road there are two,
what I call, axle busters. I mean they're right at the side of the road and
they're right before a corner, blind corner. If you don't know they're there
it, I promise you they're a jar. We know they're there so we go around
'em, right, but we risk ourselves as we come before that corner.
And so, we would really appreciate if at least those were taken care of.
And I think that maybe they could be a separate issue from the paving on
Piiholo. I mean these are really serious problems. And when we listened
to Milton Arakawa at our Olinda Community Association he advised us
that the County does not have hot patch capability. In other words, they
can't go dig up those roots and put a hot patch in 'em. They throw this
loose stuff in and the first rain we get, pau, it's gone.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. LINDSAY: Okay. So, if they, if you could take, my wife has driven that
road for five years when she taught at Makawao School. And she comes
home many, she came home many nights, she's retired now, but she came
home many nights, you know, talking about how road, cars had come
across the corner and it was, it's scary, you know. And I admire her for
being able to, to go up and down that every day.
So, and then we got a lot more traffic up there now partly because of
Waihou Springs. I don't mean to cut those people off but those are
strangers to the, to Olinda, and they don't know about those bumps. And
so we're all at risk when we face 'em now. So, I, I suggest that that could
be a separate budget and the County might consider getting hot patch
capability for those small kinds of-MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. LINDSAY: --efforts. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Lindsay. Members, any question for
the testifier? Thanks again. Kat Lui, followed by Joy Brann.
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MS. LUI: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Kat Lui. I work for the
East Maui Watershed Partnership. And I believe you guys met my boss
the other night in Hana. Hopefully, some of the field staff will come as
well. We're a small group of about eight people and we've got a big
responsibility. Our kuleana is not just the forest of East Maui but really
from the, the whole windward side of Haleakala.
And one of the, the more fun things that I get to do with my job, which
I've done for four years, is to take some of the kids out into the native
Hawaiian forest. So, this is the forest that looks much like it did when the,
when the Polynesians first came to the Hawaiian Islands. It's very lush.
And I wanted to share some of the mahalos that we've gotten from some
of our kids who've gone on the hikes with us. If that's okay with you
guys.
It says, "Dear Ms. Lui, thank you for being a wonderful guide. We really
enjoyed walking in the forest and I really enjoyed walking down that
winding trail to the gulch and feeling the clouds on my face." You know
you can't learn that in a book. You know you can't recreate that feeling the clouds on your face. And as we know the Hawaiians have names for
all of the different clouds that pass through, right. So that's a very
important part. That was from Chasen [sic], Emmanuel Lutheran School
in Kahului.
Here's another one, "Dear Ms. Lui, thank you for being a wonderful
guide. I really liked walking in the forest. When I saw the amakihi, I was
amazed. I liked everything on the field trip. My mom liked it, too." So,
this is a great way to reach, not out, not only to the kids but to the mothers.
And you know the amakihi, who gets to see that? Maybe some people
who live up in Kula, you know, but they used to be all around and, and
their land is quickly disappearing. We are lucky that we still have, have
some of these birds for the kids to experience.
And I just want to read one last one, which had made me smile. It says,
"Dear Ms. Lui, thank you so much for being a marvelous guide. I had so
much fun. I like learning all the plants and birds. It was fun to learn
where the plants came from and I hope I can come again. And thank you
for helping me find my future job." He's a fifth grader. "Can you please
tell me where I can get an application?" .. , (laughter) . ..
So, I think that brings up an important point. ... (end a/tape, start 3B) . ..
The folks from the I think it was the Makawao Association who said, you
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know, these kids are one day going to be sitting in your position, is going
to be sitting, standing where I am standing right now. So, thank you again
for your support in the past years and your continued support. Mahalo.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any question for the testifier?
No. Thank you. . . , (applause). .. Joy Brann, followed by Don
Ainsworth.
MS. BRANN: Good evening and thank you for being here tonight. I'm here, my
name is Joy Brann, and I'm here on behalf of the American Ingenuity
Alliance. This is a non-profit, Hawaii-based corporation that we wanted
to actually establish on Maui. We would request funding from, for
economic development and it will be matched by private funding from
national labor unions, inventor groups, foundations, and pension funds.
Labor, organized labor is a big part of this project because they are
actively on the mainland making agreements with inventors to protect
intellectual property rights.
And this is a company that we want to establish on Maui and we want the
County to be a partner in financing it so that it benefits the public good.
Primarily, our school is K through 12, which would be, which would
receive funding for Hawaii and nationally and to promote programs
like -- I got to move this up -- much better although I'm still nervous.
Also, like the Maui High, Maui High School's Automotive Industrial Arts
Program with Dennis Ishii. I mean there's so many kids that want to get
into that program. That program continues to win national competitions in
automotive, you know, technology.
These kids are just our average local kids but they are so smart and they
are so capable. And this organization would propose to help those kids
like that, just average and local kids to be able to have really good
high-paying jobs where they are actually taking part in negotiations
around these kinds of inventions and how they should be used. So, it's,
it's fairly complicated but the benefits to our local, working families and
the fact that it would help strengthen unions. And I, I'm just a haole girl,
right, but my grandfather was a founding member of the United Auto
Workers, Local 653 in Pontiac, Michigan.
I know where labor has come from and where it has gone and where it is
today and it needs to be strong for our communities, for our working
families, for the majority of the people in our country. And, and
information technology and innovation and, let me just read this one thing.
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Intellectual property is one of the few remaining sources of competitive
advantage in the global economy. This Ingenuity Alliance ensures
excellent educational and employment opportumties and brings
international business talents and revenues to Maui.
That would increase tourist revenues but of a business class of tourist.
And these would be like Nobel Prize winning inventors that are also going
to be working with our students, too. And it's just-MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. BRANN: --I, I just hope there's more opportunity to share more about this
with you all. Do you have any questions?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Joy.
testifier? Member Anderson.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Hi, Joy, you did real well. Is this the same
concept that was presented to us last year by Ian Hodges?
MS. BRANN: Yes, it is.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
ground since then?

And so, have you guys gotten off the

MS. BRANN: Yes. At this point, the Ingenuity Alliance is working with, on
several contracts. There's a lot of support from national labor unions.
There's pension funds like CalPERS -- I think it's called -- the biggest
pension fund in the country, which is California Public Employees
something, something. They're interested in investing in this. So, it's,
it's, it's, the bill is in the State Legislature as we speak although that bill
does not define whether or not these activities will continue. They are
growing and Ian is getting a lot of financial backing. And that will
continue to benefit Maui, Maui County.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: So, can you get us some documentation that
explains, maybe even just what you're reading off of?
MS. BRANN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Because it is a complex--
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MS. BRANN: It is. It's-COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: --concept.
MS. BRANN: --yeah, and it's late and everything else but.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: And, and how much money are you asking
the County to contribute?
MS. BRANN: We are asking for $300,000, which would be equally matched by
these other private investors. And the reason we want Maui to be an equal
partner in this is so that it can benefit our whole community.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Can you get something in writing to us?
MS. BRANN: Yes. This has already been submitted to you and ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Today?
MS. BRANN: Yes. Tonight.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Just one copy?
MS. BRANN: And, and on the back is a picture of my grandfather, an article
about his involvement in the UAW.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Oh, here it is.
MS. BRANN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Yeah, great. Thank you.
MS. BRANN: And my contact information is on the bottom. Very small but it's
there.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you very much.
MS. BRANN: I hope to speak with you again about this.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Any more questions?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS:
organization?

Can you ask her the name of the

CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Again, the name of the organization.
MS. BRANN: It's the American Ingenuity Alliance.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Ingenuity?
MS. BRANN: Ingenuity. lNG, it's, it's, yeah.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. BRANN: It's on the paper. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Don Ainsworth, followed by Tom Abbott.
MR. AINSWORTH: Thank you for the opportunity to come and talk with you
folks tonight. I'm talking about support for the, to build upon a computer,
well, I work at MCC. I'm the, the coordinator of the Sustainable
Technology Program. And we are proposing a program to create, design,
and support the development of alternative energy technology in a Beta
test site mode. New, but yet to be rendered, to be introduced, alternative
energy systems will be constructed and demonstrated on the campus
providing the community members with an opportunity to observe the
technology in operation.
Our faculty and students will learn how to operate the systems, gather data
to, to make assessments in, of comparative energy performance compared
with the level of investment, and interact with professionals in the field.
The County funds that we're asking for will support additional personnel
and provide supplies and equipment for prototype projects that encourage
and use applied-research techniques for alternative energy sources.
With the County's assistance, Maui could be the site of the alternative
education in the State. This initiative will further contribute to solutions
that could potentially benefit all islands in our State using the wind, sun,
water, waste, and other energy sources to reduce dependency on fossil
fuels. And we're asking for $250,000.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Don. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you again. .., (applause). .. Tom Abbott, followed by
Susannah Evangelista.
MR. ABBOTT: Well, my name is Tom Abbott. And I'm here tonight to speak
on behalf of the Mental Health Association of Maui. We're requesting
partial funding from the County via a line item to help us continue with
our programs in the community. Since its founding in 1972, the Mental
Health Association of Maui has been a self-supporting agency. However,
we are in a time where there are more and more agencies competing for
the same grants and donations. Volunteers are fewer and harder to come
by. And revenues from our current fundraising activities are declining.
But we do make a real effort. In the last 12-month period, we've done
three fundraisers, the annual Mayor's dinner, our yearly golf tournament at
Maui Lani, and the chicken hekka sale, which we sold a lot of chicken
hekka. This coming May we'll again be doing the Mayor's dinner and a
June golf tournament. As much time and work as the staff, volunteers,
and board members are able to put into the activities, they're still not
generating enough revenues to keep our programs funded. So, this is why
we're asking for your help.
Let me tell you a little bit about what the Mental Health Association does.
Our focus has been the quality of mental health services for children and
adults on Maui. To accomplish this goal, the Mental Health Association
provides a number of vital services in the community and these services
are in the areas of education, advocacy, and oversight to mental health
servIces.
In the area of education, the Mental Health Association sponsors a
legislative forum every year, which many of you have come to in the past
and will be there again this coming year. And it allows the voters in the
community to come meet with you and express their concerns for the
County, as well as their appreciation for your positive responses to
community issues.
We also sponsor a poster contest every year in all the schools on Maui
depicting various forms of mental illness and positive outcomes from the
problems, which really starts sensitizing children when they're very young
to these kinds of issues. Each class of cadets at the Maui Police
Department receives training from the Mental Health Association
volunteers: psychiatrists, psychologists, nurses, and social workers so that
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the cadets can recognize mental illness and developmental disabilities in
individuals that they encounter in the community and respond to them
appropriately and empathetically rather than just arresting them.
In the area of advocacy, the Mental Health Association gathers input from
the community as to where gaps and services exist and then we work to
alleviate the gaps. For instance as an example, the Mental Health
Association has been in the forefront of the efforts to reopen the children's
mental health unit at Maui Memorial Hospital, which closed about three,
four years ago.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. ABBOTT: Oh, okay. I'll read faster. So, anyway, that's going to open next
month finally. They've got, they've got the doctors, they got the staff in
place. So, it's going to happen. And monitoring the mental health
services on Maui is a major concern. The court consent decrees for both
adult and children services have been resolved. Both adult mental health
and children's mental health divisions are off the hook. They are no
longer responsible to the court. And we're very concerned that services
may decline. And we're beginning to see that in the area of children's
services already. Doctor Al Arensdorf has been out beating the bushes
because of things, well, okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Tom.
testifier? Member Molina.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good evening, Tom.
MR. ABBOTT: Good evening.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you for testifying. And for the record
how much is the Association requesting?
MR. ABBOTT:
budget.

We're asking for $35,000, which is about 40 percent of our

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you.
MR. ABBOTT: Okay. Thank you.
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CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Tom. You guys do a wonderful work for
Mental Health Association ofMaui.
MR. ABBOTT: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I appreciate it.
followed by Thia Smithwick.

Thank you.

Susannah Evangelista,

MS. EVANGELISTA: Aloha. My name is Susannah Evangelista and I'm a
direct result of the funding from last year. I'm a first-year, first-semester
student at Maui Community College in the Nursing Program. And I want
to thank you very much. It took me a long time to figure out what I
wanted to do when I grow up and here I am doing it. So, I appreciate the
opportunity to do so. There's a desperate need for nurses on Maui and to
be able to actually produce two semesters worth of nurses every year I
think is really beneficial to the community, to the hospital, to everybody
around. So, I just really want to thank you. That's it. Thanks.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Susannah. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Yeah. Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Just one quick question. How large is your class?
MS. EVANGELISTA: Forty students.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: Forty.
MS. EVANGELISTA: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: That's wonderful.
MS. EVANGELISTA: Yes, ma'am.
COUNCILMEMBER BAISA: We're very happy that this is happening and thank
you for deciding to be a nurse. We need you badly.
MS. EVANGELISTA: Thank you very much and I'm very pleased to do so.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
followed by Betty DeLima.
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MS. THIEMAN: No, I'm not Thia .... (laughter) . .. Because of the hour Thia
had to leave so during the break she sat down and wrote out her testimony.
And to move things along I'm just going to turn it in but she was going to
testify on behalf ofMEO Business Development Corps.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. THIEMAN: Thank you very much for your support-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you.
MS. THIEMAN: --in the past and in the future.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Susan. Betty DeLima, followed by Leslee
Mahoney.
MS. DELIMA: Good evening, Council Members, ladies and gentlemen. My
name is Betty DeLima and I'm speaking on behalf of MEO and the senior
citizens in Kula. First of all, I'd like to say thank you to the Council for
all the support you have given MEO for their programs in the past, and ask
that you continue to support the requests MEO will be making during this
Budget session.
As the cost of living rises, so does the expenditures of MEO in the
Transportation Department program and the Head Start program. The
Transportation program helps senior citizens, people with disabilities, and
youth transportation. The Head Start program with the increase requested
will help working parents have year-round care for their children. As
many schools have year-round classes.
As the president of the Kula Camellia Club, member of the Kula Nutrition
Program, and member of the Kula AARP, I would like to say thank you to
Mr. Pontanilla and to Gladys Baisa for their continued support of our
seniors in Kula. We have been asking for the repairs of the Kula
Community Center for a long time. Through Gladys Baisa we were told
by the Parks Department that we would be having some work done in the
kitchen area in a couple of months.
In the last Budget, $40,000 was appropriated for these repairs but we all
know that $40,000 will not be enough to do all the repairs needed at the
center. The floor tile needs to be taken off and replaced. The building
interior needs painting, the kitchen area is still the same as it was in two
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previous Council sessions that I testified to. Ifwork is not done before the
end of this year, even that 40,000 will be lost.
We seniors ask that you put additional funds in the Budget that will cover
the complete renovation of the Kula Center. Many clubs use this center
besides the outside public for parties. Monies has been put into the budget
for the tennis courts. So, please put some in for the center. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Betty.
testifier? Member Baisa.

Members, any questions for the

COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you, Betty, for coming. However, I do
want to not take credit for something that I didn't do. The money was put
in the Budget by our prior Council but all I did was to check on what was
happening to it and let you know. So, I'd like to make sure that the rest of
the Council Members understand how much she appreciates your help.
MS. DELIMA: May I reply to that?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sure.
MS. DELIMA: I, I do know that that was the, the situation. But I do know that
by going to you as the new Council Person Up country that you did follow
through and you did go to the Parks Director and I did get a response from
the Parks Director. So, I, that's why I say thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Betty. Just for your information. There's
another 100,000, $100,000 that was appropriated by Mayor Tavares for
Kula Community Center.
MS. DELIMA: Thank you so much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. You're welcome.
MS. DELIMA: Thank you very much. .., (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Members, the next four testifiers are from the EAST
Program. And I want to call all of 'em up to the podium. Leslee
Mahoney, Danielle Prince, Toni [sic] Dias, and Isla Young, as well as
Shannon [sic] Miller.
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MS. YOUNG: Good evening, Chair, and Council Members. My name is Isla
Young and I work for the Maui Economic Development Board's Women
in Technology. And my whole job is getting our island students to enter
into the science, tech, engineering, and math careers. And I wanted to say
I was actually born and raised here on Maui and I actually grew up in
Kula. So, it's really fun being here tonight and seeing all of my aunty and
uncles that I grew up with.
So, anyways, part of my job is making sure that our students are exposed
to these different areas, which weren't available when I was growing up
here. So, I'm really excited that there's technology careers available so
when our students go to school and they come back they can find jobs that
actually pay a living wage and they can have families and buy a home.
So, one of these such projects that I manage at MEDB is Project EAST,
which stands for Environmental and Spacial Technology. And EAST is
unlike any other classroom in today's high schools. It is a project-based,
service-oriented course that provide students with the most current
high-end software available in some of the most progressive fields in the
world. Project EAST endeavors to promote critical thinking and problem,
problem-solving skills in a broad range of students by getting them
involved in hands-on, real-world, technology-based projects in our
communities.
I think the really neat thing about EAST is it's an equalizer. The EAST
labs are designed to reflect the demographics of each of the schools that
they're in. So, each lab has students that are AP kids and also special
needs. So they serve as mentors for each other and by no means is it only
the AP kids helping the special needs. We have a lot of examples of the
special needs kids helping our AP students, which I think is the beauty of
the program.
Our students, through your funding every year, are allowed to compete on
a national level. So, every year I get to take a bunch of students from
Hawaii up to the National Conference where they get to compete on a
national level and every year our schools shine. This year we had Maui
High School place in the top, it was really, really exciting, placed in the
final Founder's Award. We have students that won an Audubon
competition who's here tonight. We have finalists in the ESRI GIS
Program. We have winners of a video project. So, we really did well up
there.
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I think it's very important and I'm so grateful that you folks see the value
in funding our students and allowing them to have these opportunities. So,
I have the joy of bringing our team from King Kekaulike tonight who
traveled up to the mainland. There's over 50 students and facilitators that
traveled as a Hawaii contingent including our Molokai group this year,
which added a definite extra fun to the group. But anyways, I'm
introducing our King K students. And I want to thank them for coming
'cause it's Spring Break. So, I'm really happy they showed up. So,
anyways, I'll get out of the way.
MS. MILLER: Good evening, and aloha, Council Members. My name is Shanoa
Miller and I am a senior at King Kekaulike High School and I am a
third-year EAST student in, in this program. I would just like to thank all
of you for all the support that you have been giving Maui Economic and
Development Board and Project EAST. I had the opportunity to attend the
National Conference in Hot Springs, Arkansas this past February. And it
was amazing. I actually, it was such a unique thing to do and it was one of
the best experiences I had in my life. Because I got to see how peers my
own age are using different technologies to solve community-based
problems.
And also, EAST was founded in Arkansas and they have elementary
schools doing EAST Projects. And just talking to these elementary school
kids and learning about the different projects and meeting with all these
different people that are bringing all these different technologies into the
classrooms. So, we have cutting-edge technologies in learning.
My specific interest is on the GIS software, so Geographical Information
Systems. And I had the opportunity to enter the Arkansas Audubon
competition, which is a competition that deals with project-based
community conservation. And I was very luckily to have won that
competition and there were people from, competing from California and
Illinois and Arkansas. So, it was a great experience.
And I'm also like to thank you for your support in, like I said earlier, the
Maui Economic and Development Board. I have been an advocate for
EAST and have traveled to Washington D.C. to speak with Senator Akaka
and Senator Inouye's staff, as well as attend another conference at the
National Academy of Sciences just talking about Project EAST in general
and what it has done for me.
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And before I took Project EAST, I didn't know anything about tech jobs in
Hawaii. I didn't know anything about the Maui Technology Park in Kihei.
And learning all the different tech jobs that are available in Hawaii was,
And I'm actually pursuing, hopefully, pursuing
opened my eyes.
biomedical engineering this, after I graduate high school. So, it has given
me a wide opportunity and I'm very passionate about this program.
But once again I'd like to thank all of you for all of your support in the
past years and I hope that you will continue to support us. Thank you.
Any questions? I know I talk really fast. Sorry.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Anderson.

Members, question for the testifier?

Member

COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where do you hope to go to college?
MS. MILLER: I'm not entirely sure yet. I'm still waiting for three colleges but
like I said earlier I would like to major in biomedical engineering. My
interest is specifically bioengineering but I'm kind of debating whether I
should go into the medical field or the agriculture field. So, through
MEBD [sic] and EAST I've done science fair projects that have given me
opportunities to do internships at the University of Hawaii under
biotechnology and agriculture.
And just getting me, giving me the opportunity to meet all these different
people that have come back to Hawaii that grew up here, went to
St. Anthony High School, and came back. And they're in this technology
field that's just growing and it was just a unique opportunity to do this and
I am in love with this program. And I think it is giving me a great
opportunity to kind of know where I want to get into. So thank you.
Thank you very much.
MS. YOUNG: She was accepted to four colleges so far. ... (inaudible) ...
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Well, that's what I wanted her to say.
MS. MILLER: Sorry.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Where have you been accepted to college?
MS. MILLER: Colorado State University, Oregon State University, and the
University of Arkansas, Little Rock. I know kind of random but while I
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was at EAST Conference I was actually a Hawaii State Representative and
I had to speak in front of this banquet and they pinned me down. They're
like you need to come and visit. So, I visited the campus and there's a
scholarship for EAST scholars that will be really, will do really great for
me financially and major in bio ... (inaudible) . .. there. So, we'll see
what happens so I don't know but.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Congratulations.
MS. MILLER: Thank you very much .... (applause) . ..
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Next testifier.
MS. PRINCE: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Danielle Prince
and I'm a fourth year EAST student. I've been in the EAST program all
throughout high school so all my fond memories of high school most of
them are in EAST, others aren't, but anyway. EAST is a really great
program. I've gotten to do multiple things I'd never get to do otherwise.
Before taking EAST I didn't know the name of half the programs that I
can now use, and some now I at least know the names even though I can't
use 'em yet.
I've gotten to go to training sessions and learn how to use new programs.
At the beginning of this school year, I actually went to Molokai to talk to
them about, because they're creating an EAST lab at Molokai High School
and I got to talk to them along with a couple Maui High students and that
was really fun. I went to the EAST Conference earlier this, about a month
ago, yeah, a month ago, the ending of this month. And it was really fun.
We won several awards. As you heard the Audubon Award, which
Shanoa entered and she won the competition. We got a Superior School
Award, which means we like high-ranking school. I don't know. It's
good. We represented King K well. And all of us who went we got
Difference Makers Awards, which means you have to be nominated by
someone who like came by and heard you talking about stuff. And all of
us, all four of us got nominated and received Difference Makers Awards.
And some of us were even like represented by the man who originally
founded EAST. He was like, good job.
And we also got a Documentary Film Award, which you're hear about in a
second. And it's just been a wonderful experience and I thank you so
much for funding it.
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CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Questions for the testifier? No.
MS. DIAS: Aloha. Thank you. My name is Joni Dias.
MS. MAHONEY: And I'm Leslee Mahoney.
MS. DIAS: We wanted to speak together because we did the documentary film
together. We won second place at the Hot Springs Documentary Institute
but it was sponsored by the, the EAST Conference.
MS. MAHONEY: This is really special because we're both first-year students
and we had no clue how to use all this technology. And we used this
program called iMovie. And we made a movie teaching kids at Carden
Academy, which is right across the street from King Kekaulike about how
to use a jungle gym properly since we both work there, too.
And it was really special because I did not know that EAST was this big.
I thought it was just like a little Hawaii program. And I, I and how much
technology is used in our world, you know, like SketchUp you can make
3D models of all the houses and designs and see what your building is
going to look like. And I found out my dad even uses it. It was amazing.
MS. DIAS: And currently, we're not finished with our project with the film. We
wanted to put on a little premier for the kids who participated in the film.
So, May i h we're going to have a red carpet premier night and they're
going to see their movie, well, the final product is. And we're, we're
having refreshments and they're getting certificates and stuff like that. So,
we're really excited.
MS. MAHONEY: So, thank you for funding this program. We really appreciate
it. It's a lot of opportunities I just love to have.
MS. DIAS: Thank you very much and I hope you-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, ladies.
MS. DIAS: --continue ...
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the ladies this evening?
Thank you very much. Deborah Peterson, followed by Lynndy Klevin.
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MS. PETERSON: The three of us are here representing the Maui Family YMCA.
And I'm going to let Warren go first and have me at the end.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: And Warren Gouveia.
MR. GOUVEIA: Good evening. You're down to one Warren. We lost the other
Warren. And I don't care if I'm missing American Idol, but I cannot miss
Raymond. ... (laughter) . .. Okay. I'm here testifying this evening for
YMCA. I had a stroke ten years ago and I was diagnosed as permanently
and all these labels that I have. Anyway, I'm defying all these prognosis
they had on me. And thanks to YMCA and I think there are other people
on Maui have gone through what I went through, too.
When I first had my stroke I ended up in, on Oahu at the Rehab Hospital
of the Pacific and went through their program there, and got back to Maui
and then I continued with the Maui Rehab here. And my insurance carrier
who I had been paying twice a month for 27 years decided to cut me off
and said .. .(end a/tape, start 4A) . .. therapy and my doctors went crazy.
The doctor said, you know, I prescribed the therapy you needed. So then I
panicked and I know I needed more therapy for my left side so I checked
out the YMCA. And I started there and I'm so glad I did go there. I mean
the program, the programs that they have there are unbelievable. I even
applied for a scholarship there, too. And their personnel are very highly
trained. And they also have programs for the Maui kids during the
intercession that are excellent. And we have one of the counselors here
tonight.
And of course to get to and from there I'm dependent on MEO so I have to
put in my plug in for MEO, also. Not only just transportation but also for
the Kaunoa Services. You know as you're growing up you keep thinking
you'll never be a senior. I, I sit right there at the end of this table here. I'll
be here in a few hours for my lunch. Tomorrow is Bingo. Get prizes like
instant saimin and we fight over that, too. But services from both of these
agencies are wonderful. I just want to ask you to continue your support
for them.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Warren.
MR. GOUVEIA: Sure.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for Warren? If not, thank you.
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MS. KLEVIN: Hi. I'm going to step back a little bit. My name is Lynndy. I'm
17 years old and I go to Kamehameha Schools, Maui. I'm currently a
junior and I started as a camper at the YMCA camps when I was
nine years old and they haven't gotten rid of me yet. I'm now a counselor
and trying to work my way up, hopefully, and be able to come back
through intercessions during college.
The programs that we have are really, they're awesome. I can't even
explain it. Our kids they come in and you know one day they're crying,
mom, don't leave me, and then the end of the day they're like, no, mom,
don't take me home, I want to stay. Please can I come home with you?
But they are just excellent.
And we have, we have these specialty camps that totally let kids excel in
these, you know, arts. And right now I'm the theatre camp director and
we have swim camp, basketball, archery. We're going to have sewing,
soccer. Like we're thinking of all these awesome things that our youth
really needs. And it just, it's an awesome help and it keeps us out of
trouble, including myself.
And all the counselors that are with me now are kids that I went to camp
with when I was in the camps. And, and with your support we've just
skyrocketed in our programs. And your funding has helped us so much
and I just ask that you continue. Thanks.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Lynndy. Members, any questions for the
testifier? If not, thank you very much.
MS. PETERSON: Many of you have visited with the YMCA. My name is
Deborah Peterson and I work for the YMCA. And about our capital
campaign - the Maui Family YMCA is self-sustaining with just under a
$2 million budget annually. And we come to you to help us build the
infrastructure and expand the infrastructure to meet the needs of the
community as it grows.
It's critical for what we need to do. We have as of today reached $2.25
million we've raised so far within the community through grants that
we've written and private funding from philanthropists within the
community. But 57 percent of our members and our participants are under
$40,000 a year.
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So, looking to our constituency to raise the kind of money we need,
$10 million, is beyond what is the capability. We know that and we will
continue to fundraise but we also look to you to partner with us for the
programs we have. The youth programs we have, as Lynndy said, the
camp down in Kahului but we also have the camp out in Kihei and we
have the A-plus program in many of the schools. We have the physical
education program that we've contracted with many of the schools to
provide through the YMCA.
And so, we're reaching out to our youth as well. Our camp program, we
have a hundred and, Lynndy said 153 students in the Kahului program this
week. And out in Kihei they're about equal to that. So, we're reaching
about 300 kids a week through the camp programs. We just need to
expand to meet the needs of the community and become the hub for any
satellite programs that we can continue to grow within Maui.
Oahu has eleven YMCA's. We have one. As the Big Island has two, and
Kauai received funding from the State to build a pool and expand in their
area, too. So, help us grow to meet the needs for here.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Deborah. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Just a quick question. Deborah, I know you're
very knowledgeable. How large is the total capital campaign?
MS. PETERSON: $10 million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And what is the request from the County?
MS. PETERSON: Two point five million.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Two point five mil. So, you really, you'll really
be able to leverage our money.
MS. PETERSON: Exactly. Exactly. We know we will be successful if we can
get the County funding and it will help us in getting the State funding as
well or some State funding.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: Thank you.
MS. PETERSON: Thank you very much.
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COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: And thanks for the great work.
MS. PETERSON: We need one of you to put it into the Budget. Somehow it
hasn't gotten in there yet but we want to make sure it does.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Deborah.
MS. PETERSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Okay. The next testifier is Mr. Edward Smith, followed
by Diane Logsdon.
MR. SMITH: Hello, everybody.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Good evening.
MR. SMITH: Smitty. Edward Smith, PortugueselHawaiian, Pukalani, Maui,
Hawaii. Aloha. As I sat here tonight I listened to a lot of certificate of
need from, for the, from the community, from Omaopio, Kula Kai,
Makawao. I even heard one of your employees testifying that he needs
more funding so that he can give us better service at our County
baseyards, et cetera, rubbish pickup, and all that kind of stuff.
I feel this is, that, those areas are a high priority as far as our tax money is
concerned. More so when you, when you get past 67 years old and you
got to pay those taxes, you, you know, we like to get better protection in
our community regarding proper roads and sidewalk areas cleared off
from obstacles, et cetera.
So, my main concern for coming here tonight is I feel strongly that these
areas are not being covered properly by our County Government. Let me
give you an example. We have the manpower. I believe we have the, we
have the money. It's not properly being used by the, by the Public Works
Department.
And let me, let me give you an example of that. Here the past week, I'm
sitting in the house and I see one truck with a storage tank on the back of
the truck, white pickup truck, one driver, one passenger and four rear-end
guards I call them walking with back packs down my street spraying
chemicals all on the side of the road. They have no masks on. No, no
safety glasses. No gloves.
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No ... urn ... there, there is that light type of coveralls that the County
can buy that is more highly, the less penetrateable [sic] for, for chemicals.
It's not heavy and it's not hot. It's light. In the military we even had
those that you slip over your shoes and boots, you know, when we worked
with, you know, chemicals, spraying, spraying the, you know, the kind
military vehicles, et cetera.
So, I'm looking at these guys and I come outside and say why are you
spraying? They angry with me. And I ask them who the supervisor was?
Then I asked him, they wouldn't tell me what their names were, et cetera.
They just kept going. I believe they sprayed Makawao. I hear complaints
from Makawao. My neighbors came out of the house and complain of eye
irritation and thought I was at fault doing something in my, on my
property. I told 'em no, what you getting is the fumes from those
chemicals out there drifting into your property.
So, here I'm, I'm looking at this at a very negative way.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MR. SMITH: What is manpower and money being used for something that's not
even relevant, unimportant? When that man and the money and
equipment can be used for plugging up potholes, cutting back trees up in
Kula Kai or whatever for public safety issues. Then I, we have another
area here where a health factor. We lost one Council Person as you all
know him, knew him. I won't mention his name. He died of, he died from
kidney failure. I don't know how many hours that, four hours or
whatever, every day he spent on the dialysis machine until, until the day
he died.
I don't believe we should have put our workers, our young, young, our
young workers, County employees in that position where someday they're
going to have kidney problems. They going to be tied up to the machine
four hours a day until they die and the taxpayers going be responsible for
the medical bills, dialysis bills, et cetera, et cetera, the funeral plans, and
all this. This is wrong.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Four minutes.
MR. SMITH: This is wrong. I ask, I ask you folks if there's some way that you
can have the Public Works Department redirect their thoughts, their
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manpower, and their finances, and give the workers better protection so
that we as taxpayers don't have to suffer later on paying the bills. That's,
that's, that's about covers my arguments here, too.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. Smith.
MR. SMITH: All my gripes.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any questions for the testifier? Seeing none.
Thank you very much for being here tonight.
MR. SMITH: Thank you very much for giving me the time. Okay.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Diane Logsdon, followed by Anne Trygstad.
MS. LOGSDON: Good evening, Council Members. My name is Diane Logsdon.
I'm representing the Up country seniors. I'm the President of the Kula
AARP. My concern is again another road. It's lower, Lower Kimo. What
concerns me about all of these roads Up country is the MEO buses drive on
'em and they just go .. .(imitates bus noise on bumpy road)) . .. and it's
terrible. And what's happening is it's going to be ruining the buses and
then you got to refund the buses and replace them. So, I urge you to
please fund the streets. Get them fixed because and Lower Kimo, please,
that's mine.
I know all the rest of 'em need it, too. But please I just would like to
request that funds get put into the budget for the streets.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Diane. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you for being here tonight.
MS. LOGSDON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Sherry Sorensen.

Next

testifier

Anne

Trygstad,

followed

MS. TRYGSTAD: Good evening, Chair and Members. It's an honor to be able
to present to you this evening. My name is Anne Trygstad. I'm a
NurselHealth Services Director at Roselani Place. I've also had several
years of experience working for Maui Memorial and Kula Hospital. I am
also the Maui Long Term Care Partnership co-chair of the Policy and
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Advocacy Committee and I share that position with Councilwoman
Jo Anne Johnson.
And allow me to say that over the last few years, Maui Long Term Care
Partnership in collaboration with over 50 community partners has
implemented several very, very positive and successful programs not only
on Maui Island but ultimately that have had Statewide impact. Just one of
our proposals has already saved close to $50 million in Medicaid dollars
for the entire State of Hawaii, helping over 700 people transfer from acute
hospital facilities into alternative long-term care.
So, the State is now coming to us as a think tank to receive strategies for
dealing with the tsunami of aging, which is already impacting our
community. Right now, our long-term care facilities both Kula Hospital
and Hale Makua are full. Hale Makua actually has one unit closed though
because they have an acute workforce shortage of 20 nursing assistants
that are vacant positions.
The Hospital and Kula Hospital also suffer from a deficit of certified
nursing assistants and oftentimes they have to fly in agency nurses from
Oahu and the mainland at 1.5 times the cost of what we could pay
someone who lived in our community to provide these critical health
services. The Maui Long Term Care Partnership has worked with Nancy
Johnson and the Maui Community College Nursing Program in expanding
the health care curriculums both in the dental field and in the nursing field.
I'd like to thank our previous Council for awarding $500,000 to increase
the faculty at Maui Community College. They had over 300 eligible
candidates wait-listed to go through their nursing program. And with that
$500,000 they're going to be able to increase the services to our
community, provide training for our young people, and allow them to
serve the acute shortage of health care workers that we have.
Again, Mayor Tavares has put a similar $500,000 fund in place for 2008,
and allow me to say our community desperately needs that funding to
expand our health care workforce. Working with the Maui Long Term
Care Partnership and in conjunction with Maui Community College, I
would like to suggest even further extending the $500,000 that Mayor
Tavares has put in place for 2008, for an additional $250,000, because
there is a Federal Department of Labor grant that would provide $500,000
of training funds to Maui Island if we were able to provide adequate
staffing to administer the grant.
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MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
MS. TRYGSTAD: And I've discussed this with Jo Anne and she recommended
that I come and suggest this to you this evening. First and foremost, thank
you for the previous grant to Maui Community College to encourage you
to support the grant that Mayor Tavares has put in play for 2008, and to
consider, if at all possible, to enhance that grant to allow the option to
pursue $500,000 from the Department of Labor. Thank you very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Anne. Member, Members, any questions
for the testifier this evening? Thank you very much.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Hi, Michelle.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Excuse me, Chair.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sorry. Member Anderson.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON:
writing to us?

Will you be submitting that request

III

MS. TRYGSTAD: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER ANDERSON: Thank you.
MS. TRYGSTAD: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you again .... (applause) . .. Sherry Sorensen,
followed by Giner, Gina Flammer.
MS. SORENSEN: Hello. Thank you for staying so late to hear all of our
thoughts that we have for you. My name is Sherry Sorensen, representing
myself as an individual, also my daughter Crystal Joseph, and as a
member of the Olinda Community Association, Member of the Board. I
have also turned in several written testimonies from people who couldn't
be here tonight.
And I know that you've heard numerous testimonies tonight on Olinda
and Piiholo. You've probably gotten a picture of what the road is like. I
did want to just mention a couple of points briefly. One, to clarify Ms. Anderson had a question of Leonard quite a while back. We did have
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the prior appropriation of $700,000 well over a year ago, to do some
emergency, emergency being things that needed to be done right away,
repairs on the road. This being Maui, by the time the design got done and
the plans got done we found out a few months ago that due to a merging of
the supply place for the road, the supplies that they need to work on the
roads, the prices have now, like Leonard said, doubled or over-doubled.
So, this, just to get that initial emergency repairs done, is now going to
take up the 700,000 plus this 1 million that's been appropriated for 2008.
That's why we are requesting to have this be made available as soon as
possible so we can get that initial first step done. And several people have
testified regarding the, the washboard effect where the roots are really,
really bad up there. This money doesn't even go to that. That wasn't even
included in this, this part of the repairs. So that's why we also are
desperately requesting additional funds to work on that part.
I was, I was also requested to testify for my grandson tonight. He heard I
was coming to talk to you about the roads and he says, tell 'em my story,
Nana. So this is his story. He's six. He rides the school bus up Piiholo
Road. So some of you, I know Mike has been up the road. If, if you don't
live in the area, you may have never even been up the road but you can see
by the pictures. If you would picture yourself in this large vehicle on a big
bench seat, and your feet don't touch the floor, there are no seatbelts,
nothing to hang on to except the kid next to you, and you're bouncing
down Piiholo Road on those washboards. My grandson ends up on the
floor at least once a week, sometimes every other day.
So that's who I'm speaking for in particular tonight is the children that go
on this road, as well and the safety of them and their school buses, and the
MEO buses, and, and the people who are maybe not even as protected as
we are in our cars going up these roads. So, hopefully, you'll be able to
take a look at this and help us out on that. Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Sherry. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Thank you again. .., (applause). .. Gina Flammer, followed by
Ed Zwick.
MS. FLAMMER: Good evening, Council Members. Thank you for this
opportunity. My name is Gina Flammer and I'm here representing the
Kula Community Association. And I'm here to talk about my favorite
page of the budget, the Up country capital improvement programs. Just
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briefly going to talk about three items. I'm going to keep it short because
I know you're aware of all of them.
First is the Kula Tennis Courts. And I'm here to talk about the funding for
Phase Two of that. And it's a classic example of a pitfall of business and
government planning. You want to do a project; you got to get a cost
estimate. You want the project; you do the cost estimate with the best
case scenario. You got to put a budget together, it takes six months to do
that. By the time you get the funding approved that's another three
months. It's a year before you send it out to bid.
You get the bid back you realize it's more expensive than you thought
plus during that time there's a worldwide increase in construction costs.
So there you go, it's what happened with the tennis courts. There's two
tennis courts now. You really need four to do any kind of organized
activities up there. In order to have lessons or do league play you need all
four. Everybody could play at the same time. I'm asking for approval of
those funds that are already in the budget. Thank you for that.
Quickly, I'm going to talk about the Up country pool. We were going to
invite you for a swim but we didn't want to freeze you out. As you all
know the pool heater has not worked in the ten years it's been installed.
The pool filter often fails. You get cloudy, unsafe water. You get people
stopping using the pool completely. The improvements are long overdue.
Lastly, I'm going to talk about the bike study. You already know about
that. Councilman Pontanilla requested the study last year and it's in the
budget. We're asking for approval of those funds. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA:
testifier?

You're welcome.

Members, any questions for the

MS. FLAMMER: Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: If not, thank you.
followed by Steve Goldstein.

. .. (applause). ..

Ed Zwick,

MR. GOLDSTEIN: Good evening, ladies and gentlemen of the Council. Thank
you so much for being patient and staying this, to this late hour. My
favorite topic I will spare you and, and just read a very brief statement. I
want to thank you again for the opportunity to express my support for the
replacement of the heater and filtration system in the Up country pool.
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Over the last two and two and a half years, people like myself, and Ed
Zwick, and, and Gina Flammer, along with many other regular pool users
have been, have been working with us to solve the problem.
We appeared before Jo Anne Johnson's Park and Recreation Committee a
couple of years ago. We presented petitions signed by over 300 pool
users. In our efforts, we've been recently, recently supported, or actually
we've been supported for a long time by Charmaine when she was a
Council Member and, and now as Mayor. More recently by Council
Member's Gladys Baisa, Bill Medeiros, and Mike Victorino who were
gracious enough to have us into their Council chambers and we talked
with them about our concerns.
We've also since the change in Administration, we've been really
encouraged by the Aquatics Department. Tamara Horcajo, Marian
Feenstra, and Malcolm Cooper have been wonderful in, in moving this
project forward. The heating and filtration system for the pool, which,
which was built about ten years ago, has never worked as planned. Three
of the six key pumps are not working at all. And, and as Gina said, the
pool is often so cold that it's unswimmable especially for the keiki and the
older people like me.
The outmoded sand filter requires a lot of maintenance and is often in
failure resulting in cloudy and unsanitary and unswimmable water.
Charmaine is behind this. The, the, the, the amount of money in the
Budget is sufficient to fix both of these problems finally and I urge you to
accept the Mayor's Budget recommendation to fix these long standing
problems so that we can create the wonderful recreation facility that the
Up country pool has always meant to be. So thank you very, very much.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Sir, can you identify yourself?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: My name is Steve Goldstein.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions for Mr. Goldstein?
Member Baisa.
COUNCILMEMBER BAlSA: No, just a comment. Steve, thank you for your
persistence. And I have been assured by the Director of Parks and
Recreation that it's a priority for her. She understands, you know, the
long-standing problem. And it's very difficult to be in a pool that is so
cold you can't enjoy it.
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MR. GOLDSTEIN: Thank you so much for your help, Gladys.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you again.
MR. GOLDSTEIN: Aloha.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Is Mr. Ed Zwick, Zic ... , Zwick here?
MR. GOLDSTEIN: He's gone.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA:
Robert Frost?

Gone.

Robert Frost, followed by Warren McCord.

UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He left.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: He left.
UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: He's voting for Piiholo .... (laughter) . ..
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: I see here Piiholo Road. Warren McCord.
MR. MCCORD: Council Members, my name is Warren McCord. I'm the
President of the Maui Outdoor Circle. Our initial interest in Baldwin
Avenue was to save the trees planted by Ethel Baldwin and Hannibal
Tavares, and the landscaping of the homes along Baldwin Avenue. So,
the proposal was to take the bike path off the road on the Kahului side and
provide eight miles of off-road bicycling.
Unfortunately, the first design from the design team in Honolulu that came
back was basically unsafe. It had too many right-hand and left-hand turns
and it was rejected outright by Alan Arakawa. And what we decided then
was to form a citizens committee to redesign the bike path. That was two
and a half years ago.
It took the committee .. .it consisted of, for example, Joe Krueger from the
County Public Works, Steve Holaday of HC&S.
There were
representatives of the bicycle industry, individual bicycle people, people
who were just simply interested in what we were doing. There were about
20 of us. It took us 11 months to design the bike path. And we actually
went to all the companies and asked them to close some of their roads.
We tried to make it a much safer facility.
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We turned that design into the County a year and a half ago and it has
been sitting there for a year and a half and has not been funded in order to
be drawn so that we can present it to you to show you that the bike path is
a safe and is a need for the community. Actually, at this point for the
$500,000 that the Mayor has put into the Budget, what we're asking you
to do is just to submit two small words in front of the land acquisition and
say, "design and land acquisition". We then can use $40,000 of that
$500,000 to bring that design back to show you and the community what
the bike path will be like.
Actually, the Mayor has already signed off on this and agrees that that is a
good thing to do. And so that is our request to you this evening.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Mr. McCord. Members, any questions for
the testifier this evening? Member Medeiros.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mr. McCord, thank you for your testimony.
Being that you're, you're a member of the Maui Outdoor Circle, and many
of the roads that have been talked about this evening, many of the
problems are tree, tree roots growing under the pavement and lifting the
road up. What is the Maui Outdoor Circle's position on cutting those
roots, putting root barriers to restrict the roots from continuing to grow
under the pavement? Because I know the, you know, the, the Maui
Outdoor Circle certainly one of their goals and purposes is to preserve the
trees.
So, what would be your organization's position as far as trying to do that
to improve the roads?
MR. MCCORD: If you're talking about Piiholo Road and Olinda Road-COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. MCCORD: --I'm afraid we've lost the battle there already. They're going
to have to go in and sever those roots in order to accomplish that. That
will damage the trees somewhat, but those eucalyptus trees have been
there for a long time and they will survive. Root barriers work very well.
We've used them in the botanical garden. I've used them in my
landscaping practice years ago. We are finding that part of the problem is
tree selection, and on Baldwin Avenue, for example, some of the trees that
Ethel Baldwin planted were planted too close to the right-of-way.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. MCCORD: And it is heresy for the Outdoor Circle to say take the trees out
but we already have trees to replace them. We have got 200 trees in a
nursery, thanks to Teena and Craig Rasmussen, waiting to be planted on
Baldwin Avenue. And we will plant them far enough away that they will
not impact either improvement, either the bike path or the road. The
solution for the eucalyptus trees on some of our major roads is a real
problem. And what's happened is that they were dirt roads. The trees
were planted long before we paved 'em and it's, it's, it's going to be a
costly process to get those repaired. But the root barriers do work.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. I'm glad to hear that that's the Maui
Outdoor Circle position because that will help us try and remedy the
problems Piiholo and Olinda Road are having right now with the trees and
the roots. Thank you.
MR. MCCORD: You're welcome.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Bill. Member Molina.
Thank you, Warren, for being here tonight.

No questions.

MR. MCCORD: Boy, you guys work late.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Ladies and gentlemen, if there's anyone of you that
want to provide public testimony at this time, last call, that hasn't signed
up. Oh, there's more. Let's see, Tim Ellison, followed by Nancy
Johnson.
MR. ELLISON: Good evening. Thanks for staying so late. Hopefully, I'll get
dinner. My name is, yeah, my name is Tim Ellison. Most of you know
me. . . .(end of tape, start 4B) . .. Two quick reasons. One is to support
or hopefully you'll support the tennis courts. We really need it Upcountry
and like she just said, we definitely need four courts to have a facility.
Lahaina, Kihei, Kahului, Wailuku all have tennis courts and we don't.
My son, and I'll be the proud dad, he was MIL champion for three years,
and it helped him get into college. But the frustration for him to practice
and find a court up here was really, really challenging, you know. And
people get turned away all the time from Kula courts because there's just
not enough courts up there. And I would love to see something like
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Wailuku Junior Program up here. And you need at least four to six courts
to do that. And I just seen what it's done for my son and his friends and it
would just be awesome to get a Junior Program going up here.
So, hopefully, we can get that going because we're so close. And, Mike, I
just want to talk to you a little bit. I've just heard something about the
bike routes and I'm pretty familiar with 'em because they come into
Polli's. And I hear they need to be regulated. And are you aware that they
are regulated in the last year from the top, from the Federal Government?
You can, each company can only bring five vans up there in the morning
to where before it was unlimited. So, like today, my business has
probably been cut in half with the amount of vans that come down the hill
because they can only bring five vans up there. So, there's been a very, a
lot, there's been a big increase of less impact anyway on Makawao. Any
vans that come to Polli's, I have them rack up above King K so that they
don't drive their bikes on Hanamu or don't drive their bikes down Olinda
Avenue to alleviate any kind of traffic jams there.
So, those are the, and I deal with two companies now. And the third
company, Downhill, they rack up there and they go down Haleakala and
they don't even come through Makawao. So, there's a lot less. There's at
least half that go into Makawao now. And I think if you come and have
donuts and coffee with me on the corner you could save $250,000 and we
could watch 'em go through. But I don't know, you know, how intense
that study is going to be. But if it's just Makawao, yeah, I invite you to
come up and watch, you know, and really see the effect on it because it's a
lot less than it was years ago.
Because I'm dealing with two companies now and we're doing half the
business we were with one company. So there's definitely a lot less. But
I was really here for the tennis courts and I really, you know, we need to
get that installed.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you, Tim.
MR. ELLISON: Okay. Thanks a lot.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Members, any question for the testifier? Thank you
again. Nancy Johnson, followed by Laurel Murphy.
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MS. JOHNSON: Hello. I'm Nancy Johnson. I'm the Director of the Allied
Health Department at Maui Community College. And I'm here first to
thank you for the funds that you allocated to Maui Community College
last year. You got to see one of our students that was admitted to the
program in January. We're now able to admit twice a year in the Fall and
in January. I provided you with some information about the nursing
shortage and I want to talk to you about the nursing shortage, the crisis in
long-term care, and the oral-health situation on Maui.
What you see in the, in the illustration is something, a reality I know
you're aware of, and that is that it doesn't matter how much we talk about
where the new hospital beds should be on Maui. It won't make any
difference where you put them if you don't have nurses to staff them. In
most communities, when they talk about beds, they talk about staffed
beds. And so that means the beds are of no use to you unless you have a
nurse to provide care for the patient in that bed.
If you look at some of the data, Hawaii is 46th among all the States with
62 employed nurses per 10,000 residents. In the United States, the
average is 78 nurses per 10,000. In, in Hawaii, Oahu has the highest
number of nurses. Honolulu has 9 nurses per 1,000 population. Maui has
7.3. And if you look at the diagram, it also shows you in, when, especially
when we talk about long-term care, the diagram shows how far below the
rest of the State Maui is in terms of healthcare workers and other social
assistance.
And then if you look at the next graph it shows you how much our
population is growing in comparison to the other islands. So, it's, I think
Anne called it a tsunami crisis in long-term care. And we really, it's really
here. We've got to have more long-term care workers.
The other thing I want to mention is oral health. And you've been very,
the County has been very supportive of our Maui Oral Health Center. I
gave you a flyer. We're the primary access to oral-health care for all the
Medicaid patients. And there's about 15,000 Medicaid patients on Maui.
We couldn't have the Oral Health Center without the support you've given
us. We have a Nationally Accredited Dental Assisting Program and we're
in the process of establishing a Dental Hygiene Program, an associate
degree Dental Hygiene Program.
This is more important than you probably can imagine because of the new
research that shows that periodontal disease is a precursor to diabetes,
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heart disease, and pre-term labor. The indications are that a woman who
doesn't have her teeth cleaned is seven times more likely to have a
premature baby. Can you imagine what that costs Hawaii? And we have
women referred to us from the Community Clinic all the time that have
never had their teeth cleaned.
And so they're very important to have this access. I'm asking you to
continue your support. The College is requesting or the Mayor's Budget
includes 500,000 for Allied Health and in addition to the money that Don
mentioned for Sustainable Technology.
MS. WILLENBRINK: Three minutes.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you, Nancy. Members, any questions for the
testifier? Again, thank you very much.
MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Laurel, Laurel Murphy, followed by Daisha Kawaa.
MS. MURPHY: Good evening, hard-working Council Members. Nice to meet
the new guys. I'm Laurel Murphy. I'm Vice-President of the Maui
Outdoor Circle. And I'm here to argue on behalf of your funding of the
Baldwin Avenue bike path, please. The reasons to spend the half a million
dollars on this bike path are mainly for safety because there are now
120,000 bikers going down that Baldwin Avenue every year to the great
frustration of local motorists, and of course, to the jeopardy of the bikers
themselves. And I know the County has been struggling with liability
with this issue and insurance and, and so forth. So that's the obvious
reason to support construction of the bike path to create an alternate route
for the traffic hazard.
And Warren has addressed technical issues. But I'm here really to raise
another issue, which is the preservation of Maui' s beautiful meandering
County roads. Those things that make Maui, Maui. That beautiful
leisurely drive on the way to work that lifts your soul and makes you
think, oh, my God, I'm just the luckiest person in, in the world. And
building the bike path will just eliminate the constant pressure to widen
Baldwin Avenue. Widening Baldwin Avenue means cutting down the
100 shower trees that Ethel Baldwin planted in 1930 and that our Mayor's
father, Hannibal, continued to plant in the '60s.
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People, people love that road. You know we all love that road. So, that's
one thing the bike path will do and it will also create a thing of beauty. I
really believe that you guys will leave a lasting legacy that will outlive
you if you approve this just as Ethel Baldwin, you know, 75 years ago left
a legacy that will, that, that really outlives her. And, and just in terms of
quality of life.
So, we at the Outdoor Circle have pledged to plant 100 shower trees along
the bike path. We're already growing some of them. And you may not
know this but it will also be a walking path. So, just imagine on a Sunday
afternoon being able to just meander down this beautiful path with the
soaring views of the pineapple fields, and the ocean, and the West Maui
Mountains while shower blossoms just scatter at your feet going wow, you
know.
So, it's not only presenting a liability but it's, it's adding something for
future generations. So, please kokua. Thank you. Any-CHAIR PONT ANILLA: Thank you. Members, any questions-MS. MURPHY: --questions?
CHAIR PONT ANILLA: --for the testifier? If not, thank you very much.
MS. MURPHY: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR PONTANILLA: Daisha Kaawa [sic]. No Daisha. Last person to signed
up this evening, David Backstrom. Gone? David. Okay. Members ...
MR. LINDSAY: May I make one more addition?
CHAIR PONTANILLA: I'm, I'm going to allow it. Okay. Make it short.
MR. LINDSAY: Yeah, I will because I don't have all my facts. I'm David
Lindsay. I'm with the Olinda Community Association. I'm Fire
Mitigation Chairman. And I wanted you to know that we're, we're not
leaving it all on your shoulders. We're, we've been trying since 2004,
through Mr. English to get the trees in the State land cut back from the
road. We have much correspondence and no results, yet. It's, it's, it's
really sad because we have a fire hazard up there that is, I used to fight
fires in the mainland, those pine forests and they're bad.
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